
2 October 2018

To: Councillors Callow, Mrs Callow JP, D Coleman, Elmes, Hobson, Humphreys, Hutton, 
O'Hara, Mrs Scott and L Williams 

The above members are requested to attend the: 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 10 October 2018 at 6.00 pm
in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool

A G E N D A

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state: 

(1) the type of interest concerned either a

(a) personal interest
(b) prejudicial interest 
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)

and

(2) the nature of the interest concerned

If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 11 JULY 2018 (Pages 1 - 10)

To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 11 July 2018 as a true and correct 
record.

Public Document Pack



3 PUBLIC SPEAKING 

To consider any applications from members of the public to speak at the meeting.

4 FORWARD PLAN (Pages 11 - 16)

To consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan, October 2019 – February 2019, 
relating to the portfolio of the Cabinet Secretary.

5 COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS FROM 2018/2019 
(Pages 17 - 24)

To inform the Committee of the arrangements for reporting performance against the 
suite of headline key performance indicators for Priority 2 for 2018/2019.

6 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH'S ANNUAL REPORT ON THE HEALTH OF THE PEOPLE OF 
BLACKPOOL 2017 (Pages 25 - 56)

To present to the Committee, ‘From the Ground Up: Annual report on the health of the 
people of Blackpool 2017’, the Director of Public Health’s latest annual independent 
assessment of local health needs, determinants and concerns.

7 LANCASHIRE CARE FOUNDATION TRUST IMPROVEMENT PLAN (Pages 57 - 64)

To provide the Committee with a progress report on the Lancashire Care Foundation 
Trust Improvement Plan.

8 LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM UPDATE 
(Pages 65 - 70)

To update the Committee on key areas of progress across the Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Integrated Care System.  

9 SCRUTINY WORKPLAN (Pages 71 - 80)

The Committee to consider the Workplan, together with any suggestions that Members 
may wish to make for scrutiny review.

10 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

To note the date and time of the next meeting as 28 November 2018, commencing at 
6.00pm.

Venue information:

First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building.



Other information:

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager, Tel: 01253 
477213, e-mail sharon.davis@blackpool.gov.uk

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

Present: 

Councillor Hobson (in the Chair)

Councillors

Callow
Mrs Callow JP

Critchley
Elmes

Humphreys
O'Hara

Mrs Scott
L Williams

In Attendance: 
Councillor Amy Cross, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health
Mr Paolo Pertica, Head of Community Safety Strategy, Blackpool Council
Ms Liz Petch, Consultant in Public Health, Blackpool Council
Ms Rachel Swindells, Public Health Practitioner, Blackpool Council
Mr Sandip Mahajan, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser, Blackpool Council

Mr David Bonson, Chief Operating Officer, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
Mr Roy Fisher, Chair, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group
Ms Kate Newton, Performance and Quality Manager, Midlands and Lancashire 
Commissioning Support Unit

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor O’Hara declared a personal interest concerning Blackpool Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust, which was referred to in Item 4 ‘Blackpool Clinical Commissioning 
Group End of Year Performance Report’, as his daughter was a Governor of the Trust.

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 9 MAY 2018

The Committee agreed that the minutes of the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 9 May 2018 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

3 PUBLIC SPEAKING

The Committee noted that there were no applications to speak by members of the public 
on this occasion.

4 BLACKPOOL CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE REPORT 
(APRIL 2017 TO MARCH 2018)

Mr David Bonson, Chief Operating Officer, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group 
presented the Clinical Commissioning Group’s end-year performance for 2017-2018 (April 
2017 - March 2018). Mr Roy Fisher, Chair, Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group and Ms 
Kate Newton, Performance and Quality Manager, Midlands and Lancashire 
Commissioning Support Unit were also in attendance.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

The Chairman referred to 266 incidents of patients having to wait over four hours on a 
trolley (target now retitled to ‘decision to admit’) whilst in Accident and Emergency. The 
high number was much worse than the previous year. This was particularly concerning 
given that the target was actually zero and Members had raised the issue on previous 
occasions and been given assurance that matters would improve. 

Mr Bonson explained that the issue was mirrored nationally and was not specifically due 
to Accident and Emergency patient numbers but wider system pressures concerning 
patient flows throughout the hospital. In particular, availability of beds was an issue. 
Optimum bed occupancy would be between 85-90% allowing some spare capacity for ad-
hoc demand. However, winter pressures had resulted in full bed occupancy and it had 
become an all-year challenge to reduce the bed pressures. 

He clarified that the ‘decision to admit’ [to Accident and Emergency] target had been 
breached numerous times on a few days leading to the high number, i.e. a slightly skewed 
figure. Analysis had been undertaken to better understand the issues. A key element was 
the lack of available beds meaning that patients were being queued up with the knock-on 
effect impacting upon other areas, e.g. the 18 week target for GP referral to treatment. 
He added that the beds issue was not solely due to the Hospital, e.g. patients had been 
seen in Accident and Emergency and were awaiting mental health assessments but at 
times the Lancashire Care Foundation Trust had no available beds at its Harbour facility. 

Mr Bonson re-iterated that the issues were due to ‘whole system’ pressures and that 
these had been escalated for consideration. NHS Improvement was involved with looking 
at what support was needed to tackle the beds issue. 

Members queried whether effective use had been made of recent Council loans to the 
Hospitals Trust to help tackle pressures such as bed shortages. Mr Bonson advised that 
the loans had been made directly to the Trust who would be best placed to explain how 
the monies had been spent. 

Members queried why waiting times for first cancer treatment following urgent GP 
referral and NHS health screening were so high. They expressed concern that some 
patients were cancelling cancer treatment appointments so they could maintain planned 
holidays. 

Ms Newton explained that there were various reasons for delays including patient choice. 
The aim was to confirm a prompt appointment with patients as soon as possible but 
flexibility was required. Cases could involve various treatment options and complex 
pathways of care. However, delays due to patient choice were also referred back to their 
GPs for further influence highlighting the health issues and potential implications of 
unnecessary delay. She added that the NHS Health Screening Service was a ‘one-stop 
shop’ for checking various health indicators but there was a capacity issue with follow-up 
actions and various options were being considered to reduce delays. 

Members expressed concerns that some people did not need to be in Accident and 
Emergency impacting upon demand and that those people needed to be filtered out 
early. Mr Bonson explained that there were plans to tackle delays such as trying to 
increase health screening and other primary care screening taking place in good time to 
deflect people to more appropriate care options than Accident and Emergency. 

Page 2



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

He cited that approximately 30% of patients had been deflected from the hospital ‘front 
door’ to routes such as minor treatment. Primary care screening took place at limited 
times so could be increased and better use made of good local provision such as round-
the-clock pharmacists. Some alternative treatment centres to Accident and Emergency 
were well known such as the ‘walk-in’ Whitegate Drive Health Centre but awareness 
campaigns and messages including ‘self-care’ could be re-iterated to people. He added 
that sometimes people would just turn up at Accident and Emergency and be reluctant to 
then be sent elsewhere. 

Members referred to the 96 cancelled operations (target of zero) due to the winter 
period and sought assurance that cancellations wouldn’t be repeated and the back-log 
would be cleared before the next winter season. 

Ms Newton explained that the cancelled operations were elective treatment not 
emergencies but where it had not been possible to agree another appointment within 28 
days of the cancellation. Winter pressures such as bed shortages had had an impact and 
cancellations led to knock-on effects elsewhere such as cancer referrals to treatment, i.e. 
whole system all-year pressures with efforts to ‘catch-up’. Improving patient flow 
throughout the hospital was essential. 

Mr Bonson added that some ‘outsourcing’ of elective care was required to help manage 
appointments, e.g. to the private Spire Hospital, and free up space to ensure that 
accidents and emergencies were covered. 

The Chairman referred to the new national performance framework for ambulance 
service response times. The average time targets for Category A (immediate response 
required) and Category B (urgent / rapid response) had not been met by the North West 
Ambulance Service. Mr Bonson advised that nationally all ambulance trusts were 
struggling with the new performance targets, although national investment funding of 
£36million was being offered to invest in new vehicles. 

Mr Bonson reported that the North West Ambulance Service had developed a 
performance improvement plan focusing on what was within its own control. He re-
iterated that winter pressures were a factor but also that the new targets for each 
category required logistical changes in different types of vehicles and appropriate staffing 
on vehicles, e.g. rapid response vehicles might need two paramedics on board rather than 
just one. In response to a query, he clarified that ambulances always had two trained staff 
on board but there might only be one if the vehicle was transferring between shifts. 

Some Members reported good personal experiences of the Ambulance Service with no 
handover delays at hospital and praised the professionalism of the paramedic staff. 

In response to a suggestion that an existing dormant building on the Blackpool Victoria 
Hospital site could be converted into additional bed space, Members were informed that 
the relevant building was owned by the Lancashire Foundation Care Trust but in its 
current state was not ‘fit for purpose’. However, the principle of developing a building 
appropriately to create additional bed space was sound. 

The Chairman advised that, in view of constant struggling performance and the reported 
system wide pressures, the Committee was keen to undertake short focused reviews on 

Page 3



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

1) delayed transfers of care and bed shortages, and 2) Accident and Emergency waiting 
times and ambulance handovers. 

Members were advised that it was envisaged that these reviews would be single meetings 
with health partners and Adult Social Care invited aiming to identify and recommend 
some key improvements and actions. 

The proposed reviews would be discussed with lead officers to establish current issues 
and actions and any planned work to ensure that reviews were focused on adding real 
value. In principle, the lead officers welcomed the proposed reviews. 

The Committee agreed, subject to discussions with lead officers, to undertake short 
reviews (single meetings) on 1) delayed transfers of care and bed shortages, and 2) 
Accident and Emergency waiting times and ambulance handovers. 

5 ANNUAL COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT 2017-2018

Members were presented with progress on the Council Plan performance indicators for 
the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018. There were sixteen comprehensive indicators 
for Adult Social Care and fourteen for Public Health. Senior officers were present to 
answer any detailed service questions. 

Members focused on the ‘exceptions’ commentary reports where indicators were 
significantly off target. The Chairman referred to the number of drug users successfully 
completing treatment for sustained recovery. Opiate drug user performance was 
significantly off target and substantially so for non-opiate drug users. 

Mr Paolo Pertica, Head of Community Safety Strategy explained that there were different 
methodologies for measuring drug treatment outcomes. The National Drug Treatment 
Monitoring System (NDTMS) in the North West was monitored by John Moores University 
which received data from all drug service providers within the region. In addition to that, 
performance monitoring also took place by those commissioning the service locally. 

He clarified that some of the targets referred to in the exceptions commentary such as 
‘Number of drug users successfully completing treatment - Opiates and Non-opiates’ -  
were set using inaccurate baseline data provided by the previous contracted provider. 
However, even if the baseline data had been correct, such percentages of successful 
completions would have been extremely ambitious and rarely seen anywhere in the 
country. Similarly, such ambitious outcomes were not known in most countries in Europe 
and elsewhere in the world. 

Mr Pertica explained that the previous contracted service had been decommissioned and 
a new provider appointed to deliver the service, which had a more holistic approach to 
sustained recovery. In-depth analysis was currently taking place between the 
commissioners of the service, Public Health and the new provider to ensure that any 
inaccuracies with data recording were rectified, accurate baselines set and new realistic, 
achievable targets agreed.

Members noted that the numbers of people successfully completing alcohol treatment 
was less than half of the target of 500 people and had been based on the inaccurate data. Page 4



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

They also noted that successful outcomes through the new service provider had increased 
but were still no more than national average levels. Members felt that the target needed 
to be more ambitious and also record numbers of people who sufficiently recovered to 
lead normal lives. 

Mr Pertica agreed that targets needed to be ambitious but also realistic. He clarified that 
high numbers of people with drug and alcohol problems was often associated with a 
number of contributory factors such as deprivation, unemployment and poor housing. He 
added that whilst the effectiveness of drug and alcohol treatment had improved 
considerably in recent decades, there was still no simple solution to help those with drug 
and alcohol problems to achieve abstinence, and that was the case not just in the UK but 
throughout Europe and most countries worldwide.  

However, Mr Pertica reported that a number of people did complete treatment 
successfully each quarter and some of them were able to secure full time employment 
and pursue constructive and productive drug-free lives. He re-iterated that total 
abstinence might not be a realistic objective for all those undergoing treatment, and 
referred to countries such as Portugal and Switzerland where more harm reduction 
approaches had been adopted and had proven successful in supporting people who, 
although not completely drug free, were still able to live fulfilling and productive lives. 

In response to a query, Mr Pertica explained that it was difficult, using tracking surveys, to 
follow up levels of sustained recovery of people undergoing drug treatment months or 
years after they had left treatment. He re-iterated that it was more important people 
were able to lead normal lives rather than achieve total abstinence. Members agreed 
with this sentiment. 

Although not part of the Council Plan performance indicators, the Chairman expressed 
concern on the high numbers of emergency admissions due to alcohol misuse. He cited 
Scotland where minimum alcohol pricing had been introduced to help tackle the problem 
and also that Newcastle had introduced a form of alcohol ‘tax’. Mr Pertica stated that the 
Director of Public Health, Dr Arif Rajpura, had been very supportive of introducing a 
Minimum Unit Price (MUP) for a number of years. However, this was not supported 
across the country and was a national decision for central government to take. Councillor 
Cross added that pricing was a complicated concept needing a wider area approach, e.g. 
across the north-west region / Lancashire sub-region otherwise people could just go 
across local borders for cheaper alcohol. The economic impact on local businesses also 
needed to be considered. The Government had been lobbied but so far had shown no 
inclination for pricing controls.

Members queried the low take-up of NHS health checks and emphasised the importance 
of preventative work. Ms Liz Petch, Consultant in Public Health explained that insight 
work with local residents had taken place, led by the Blackpool Clinical Commissioning 
Group, to establish why people were not taking up health checks which were for early 
detection of health issues. Findings showed two main misconceptions associated with 
attending the NHS Health Check – If people felt well, they queried the need for attending 
a health check; and they had concerns about putting unnecessary time pressure on busy 
GPs. People needed to understand the purpose of the early detection programme as 
many health harms could have hidden symptoms, e.g. high blood pressure or atrial Page 5



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

fibrillation. 

Ms Petch reported that a new campaign was being developed emphasising that people 
were not wasting NHS time by taking up health checks and that they should attend when 
called for an appointment and could be saving valuable NHS resources over time. 

The Chairman referred to data errors for chlamydia (sexual health) screening. Ms Petch 
explained that these had been due to issues with laboratory test submissions which had 
been resolved and improved results were now expected. 

The Chairman also queried what had been the final numbers of people successfully 
quitting smoking against the target of 686. Councillor Amy Cross, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Services and Health explained that the previous specialist service had been 
decommissioned in April 2017. The service had underperformed on some of the key 
performance indicators during the contract duration and, mainly, as it had not been 
meeting the requirement of the service specification or the needs of the population, as 
identified through insight work with residents.  Interim support had since been provided 
by GPs and pharmacists from October 2017. Members noted that there had been limited 
support available to people between April 2017 and October 2017. 

Councillor Cross added that a better support service had been sought led by a 
comprehensive review of people’s needs and identifying the best value for money 
support options available for the most productive outcomes. 

Members expressed concern that commissioned contracts were not always scrutinised 
effectively and that poor contract provision needed to be addressed. Councillor Cross 
explained that she held contract leads (Adult Social Care and Public Health) to account for 
ensuring robust contract monitoring and quality outcomes.  She added that 
commissioning leads were developing a more effective evidence-based approach to 
commissioning and managing contracts.

Members queried why there had been no performance target for ‘delayed transfers of 
care’ (solely due to Adult Social Care as opposed to the healthcare sector). Ms Karen 
Smith, Director of Adult Services explained that as a new data item it was hard to 
establish an appropriate performance level and new national guidance was awaited in 
this area. She added that having effective actions was paramount and substantial work 
had been developed. Work was also taking place with the Government’s national team 
which needed to meet national targets to secure funding payments. 

She explained that precise numbers of delays solely due to Adult Social Care involved 
cross-referencing figures with Blackpool Teaching Hospitals to establish where there had 
been delays solely due to the health sector and also where there was shared 
responsibility. In response to Members’ concerns that the current data didn’t provide 
practical information, Ms Smith re-iterated that this was a national issue but ‘direction of 
travel’ work could still take place and as part of the proposed Scrutiny Review on ‘delayed 
transfers of care’. 

Members expressed concern that mortality rates from preventable causes were at their 
highest for a decade. Ms Petch explained that comprehensive consideration needed to be Page 6



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

given across systems and sectors so work was ongoing. Ms Petch reported that she had 
been working closely with the Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group and Blackpool 
Teaching Hospitals, to identify risks and what was needed for successful outcomes such as 
preventing diabetes, Coronary Heart Disease and stroke.

6 ADULT SERVICES OVERVIEW REPORT

Ms Karen Smith, Director of Adult Services presented an update on the current status 
and developments in the care sector for Blackpool. The update included residential and 
nursing provision, regulated placements, care at home services and other ongoing work 
and plans.

The Chairman referred to the current provision table on volume, demand and capacity 
across the in-house Homecare Service. The table outlined different types of social care 
provision, numbers of new referrals for each provision type and total hours allocated for 
new referrals as well as the total number of care hours delivered across the provision 
types.  He queried what quality outcomes had been achieved in terms of performance. 

Ms Smith explained that the table aimed to give a current picture of social care demand 
and levels of investment and provision. She added that social care provision came 
through a mix of council commissioned services and from the private sector. She 
suggested that these social care issues could form part of a scrutiny exercise. 

Ms Smith gave the example of the ‘Homes Best’ service which was developed to provide a 
speedy hands-on response to help people get home from hospital or prevent them going 
in the first place. The service was available for a short period to anyone, regardless of 
Care Act eligibility, and free at the point of use.  The more holistic approach helped keep 
people out of hospital through immediate support prior to consideration of longer-term 
needs and options, and for some people, the short term support was all that was needed 
to get them back on track. 

In response to questions, Ms Smith explained that the ‘Vanguard’ pilot approach to 
develop support in neighbourhoods and new ways of working had finished.  The 
Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group was now leading on neighbourhood ‘hubs’ and 
‘new models of care’, using the learning from the pilot. 

The Chairman referred to ratings given by the Care Quality Commission, the national 
regulator responsible for inspecting health and social service providers including care 
homes and care at home. The Commission had rated Blackpool well against regional and 
national peers for residential and nursing provision and care at home provision up to May 
2018. He noted that most provision had been rated well but queried what was being done 
to secure the improvements recommended by the Commission for where provision was 
less satisfactory. 

Ms Smith explained that the in-house quality monitoring team was responsible for 
holding providers to account and supporting them to ensure quality and safety of care 
improved. Quality monitoring officers would visit providers, develop improvement plans 
with them and identify any additional help needed to deliver improvements. Officers 
looked for evidence of improvement and provided advice and guidance to help providers 
to improve. Formal action under the contract terms could be taken in exceptional cases Page 7



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

where the provider was unable to sustain the level of improvement required.

7 PUBLIC HEALTH UPDATE ON STOP SMOKING PROVISION

Members were presented with an update on the stop smoking support provision and 
proposed new service model. The target implementation date was 1 October 2018.

The Chairman noted that there was a wide range of support options listed with detailed 
analysis of costs, benefits and effectiveness. He queried why there was no mention or 
analysis of the electronic (e) cigarettes given that Public Health England advocated their 
use and cited evidence of three million people quitting successfully. 

He added that leading cancer researchers from the University of Stirling had cited low 
levels of young people reducing cigarette smoking and also that e-cigarettes were not 
being taken up significantly by young people. The Chairman referred to the significant 
smoking issue within Blackpool which, in his opinion, was worse than people using e-
cigarettes and that all avenues needed to be explored. 

Ms Petch, Consultant in Public Health explained that there was still uncertainty over the 
merits and risks of e-cigarettes and debates were ongoing. The regional network of Public 
Health directors had noted the Public Health England viewpoint that e-cigarettes 
represented a low level of risk and could be an effective tool to help people quit smoking. 
It had been agreed regionally that where e-cigarettes were being used as a ‘quit’ aid then 
that would be ok as that was better than the harm from cigarettes. 

However, she added that Public Health had concerns where people had from a zero base 
starting using e-cigarettes including young people. Therefore e-cigarettes had not been 
mentioned explicitly. Reputable brands of e-cigarettes needed to be used but there were 
concerns over quality control which council officers were attempting to tackle.  Nicotine 
replacement therapy (NRT) such as patches represented viable and effective alternatives. 

Mrs Rachel Swindells, Public Health Practitioner explained that Blackpool had a high 
proportion of young people using e-cigarettes and that there were issues with them 
exhaling ‘clouds’ of vapour through e-cigarettes and that some evidence suggested levels 
of harm from the secondhand vapour produced. She added that young people were using 
e-cigarettes because they were seen as being fashionable whereas adults used them as a 
quit aid. Councillor Cross added that currently e-cigarettes could not be recommended 
given that they were not currently available through prescription.

Some Members referred to the costs of smoking (ordinary cigarettes and e-cigarettes) 
especially for people on low incomes and that people often went without more important 
basic goods. Members had concerns that some young people would never be persuaded 
to quit so it was important to promote anti-smoking messages and risks, e.g. to pregnant 
women and babies. 

Councillor Cross explained that the proposed stop smoking support service worked on the 
premise that people needed to want to quit in the first place. They would then be offered 
support options. These ranged from ‘self-support’ (simple sign-posting to options 
available), targeted support through GPs and pharmacists and dedicated support for Page 8



MINUTES OF ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING - 
WEDNESDAY, 11 JULY 2018

specific groups such as pregnant women. 

Ms Petch explained that smoking was an addiction and needed to be treated as such 
through offering people support. There was no single solution but a range of support 
options. Ms Swindells added that the evidence demonstrated that 70% of smokers 
wanted to quit and needed to be offered support options at the right time. 

Members queried whether there was sufficient information being provided to school 
children to promote early intervention. Ms Swindells explained that this formed part of 
the school physical, health and social education (PHSE) curriculum. Alongside this, 
educating families was promoted. Ms Petch added that a wider approach was pursed by 
the Council in promoting Blackpool to be a smoke-free environment.

8 ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORKPLAN 2018-2019

The Committee considered its Workplan for 2018-2019.

The Committee agreed:
1. To approve the Scrutiny Workplan, subject to discussions with lead officers to 

undertake short reviews (single meetings) on 1) delayed transfers of care and bed 
shortages, and 2) Accident and Emergency waiting times and ambulance handovers.

2. To note the ‘Implementation of Recommendations’ table.

9 NEXT MEETING

The Committee noted the date and time of the next meeting as Wednesday 10 October 
2018 commencing at 6pm in Committee Room A, Blackpool Town Hall.

 
 
Chairman
 
(The meeting ended at 7.30 pm)
 
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact:
Sandip Mahajan, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser
Tel: 01253 477211
E-mail: sandip.mahajan@blackpool.gov.uk

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Mrs Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager.

Date of Meeting 10 October 2018

FORWARD PLAN

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan, October 2019 – February 
2019, relating to the portfolio of the Cabinet Secretary.

2.0 Recommendations:

2.1 Members will have the opportunity to question the relevant Cabinet Member in 
relation to items contained within the Forward Plan within the portfolio of the 
Cabinet Secretary.

2.2 Members will have the opportunity to consider whether any of the items should be 
subjected to pre-decision scrutiny.  In so doing, account should be taken of any 
requests or observations made by the relevant Cabinet Member.

3.0 Reasons for recommendations:

3.1 To enable the opportunity for pre-decision scrutiny of the Forward Plan items.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

N/A

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is:

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

5.0 Background Information

5.1 The Forward Plan is prepared by the Leader of the Council to cover a period of four 
months and has effect from the first working day of any month.  It is updated on a 
monthly basis and subsequent plans cover a period beginning with the first working 
day of the second month covered in the preceding plan.

5.2 The Forward Plan contains matters which the Leader has reason to believe will be 
subject of a key decision to be taken either by the Executive, a Committee of the 
Executive, individual Cabinet Members, or Officers.

5.3 Attached at Appendix 4(a) is a list of items contained in the current Forward Plan. 
Further details appertaining to each item contained in the Forward Plan has 
previously been forwarded to all members separately.

6.0 Witnesses/representatives

6.1 The following Cabinet Members are responsible for the Forward Plan items in this 
report and have been invited to attend the meeting:

 Councillor Graham Cain, Cabinet Secretary.

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

List of Appendices:
Appendix 4(a): Summary of items contained within Forward Plan.

7.0 Legal considerations:

7.1 None.

8.0 Human Resources considerations:

8.1 None.

9.0 Equalities considerations:

9.1 None.

10.0 Financial considerations:

Page 12



10.1 None.

11.0 Risk management considerations:

11.1 None.

12.0 Ethical considerations:

12.1 None.

13.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

13.1 None.

14.0 Background papers:

14.1 None.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(a)

Forward Plan October 2018 to February 2019

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN  -  SUMMARY OF KEY DECISIONS

(OCTOBER 2018 TO FEBRUARY 2019)
* Denotes New Item

Anticipated
Date
of Decision

Matter for Decision Decision
Reference

Decision
Taker

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member

January 
2019*

Green and Blue Infrastructure 
Strategy

35/2018 Executive Cllr Cain

Page 15



Appendix 4(a)

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN -  KEY DECISION:

Matter for Decision

*Ref Nº  35/2018 

Green and Blue Infrastructure Strategy

Decision making 
Individual or Body

Executive

Relevant Portfolio 
Holder

Councillor Graham Cain, Cabinet Secretary (Resilient 
Communities) 

Date on which or 
period within which 
decision is to be made

February 2019

Who is to be 
consulted and how

Public consultation has already taken place and will 
continue as the strategy is further developed

How representations 
are to be made and by 
what date

Contact the relevant Director using the contact details 
below.

Documents to be 
submitted to the 
decision maker for 
consideration

Report and strategy

Name and address of 
responsible officer

John Blackledge, Director of Environmental and Community 
Services

e-mail: john.blackledge@blackpool.gov.uk
Tel:  (01253) 478400

Page 16



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Mr Scott Butterfield, Transformation Manager

Date of Meeting: 10 October 2018

COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE - REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS FOR 
2018/2019 

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To inform the Committee of the arrangements for reporting performance against the 
suite of headline key performance indicators for Priority 2 for 2018/2019.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1  To agree the new approach for performance reporting; and

 Consider ways in which gaps in performance reporting to the Committee can be 
addressed. 

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 To ensure constructive and robust scrutiny of performance against the Council Plan 
2015-2020.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

Yes

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered: N/A

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is:

 Communities – create stronger communities and increase resilience

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



5.0 Background information

5.1 As part of the recent review of the Council Plan, the set of corporate performance 
indicators has been revised from over 100 indicators to a much smaller set of headline key 
performance indicators (KPIs). These indicators relate directly to corporate objectives and 
are designed to provide a short, focused sweep of performance across the core business of 
the Council. Also included, are a number of performance indicators relating to the 
performance of the wholly owned companies, as these companies make crucial 
contributions to the delivery of our corporate objectives.

5.2 Sitting underneath the headline KPI’s are a structured suite of supporting performance 
indicators which give context and challenge to the headline indicators, and will be 
monitored and presented, as and when required, to the relevant audience to support 
effective, evidence-based decision making.

6.0 Reporting Arrangements for 2018/2019

6.1 It is proposed that performance against the Council Plan headline KPIs should be 
incorporated into existing directorate / service specific update reports. This would 
replace the Council Plan performance reports produced by the Corporate Delivery 
Unit which the Committee currently receives on a quarterly basis. At the end of the 
financial year, an annual summary of Council Plan performance will be provided by 
the Corporate Delivery Unit.

6.2 This approach aims to: 

 Reduce duplication in terms of the same performance information being 
reported in different corporate and directorate reports; 

 Embed the headline KPIs into directorate / service performance management 
and monitoring, where this isn’t already the case; and 

 Increase accountability, enabling those who are directly responsible for 
performance to present it to the Committee along with other contextual 
information.

6.3 Appendix 5(a) – Reporting Timetable 2018-2019 provides further detail on the 
headline KPIs which are relevant to this Committee and the reports which these KPIs 
will be included in. Where there are gaps in performance reporting i.e. a KPI does not 
fall within the remit of a current directorate / service report received by the 
Committee, this has been highlighted.

6.4 For information, performance against these indicators as at Quarter 1 2018/19 is 
included in Appendix 5(b) – Headline KPI Dashboard Q1 2018-2019.

Page 18



Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

List of Appendices:
Appendix 5(a): Reporting Timetable 2018-2019
Appendix 5(b): Headline KPI Dashboard Q1 2018-2019 

7.0 Legal considerations:

7.1 None

8.0 Human Resources considerations:

8.1 None

9.0 Equalities considerations:

9.1 None

10.0 Financial considerations:

10.1 None

11.0 Risk management considerations:

11.1 None

12.0 Ethical considerations:

12.1 None

13.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

13.1 N/A

14.0 Background papers:

14.1 None

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5(a) – Performance Timetable 2018/2019

Theme Indicator Lead Report Meeting Notes

Mortality rate from conditions 
considered preventable 
(all ages - all persons)

Arif Rajpura

Healthy life expectancy at birth 
(male - all ages) Arif Rajpura

Improving health outcomes for 
people who live in Blackpool, with 
fewer people developing 
preventable long term health 
conditions Healthy life expectancy at birth 

(female - all ages) Arif Rajpura

Public Health 
Overview 

Report

 13th Feb 2019 
or 3rd Jul 2019

Also covered in the Public Health 
Annual report.

      
Theme Indicator Lead Report Reporting Dates Notes

When people in Blackpool are well 
enough to be discharged from 
hospital, there will be no delay as 
a result of the availability of 
support for their social care needs

Delayed Transfers of Care – delays 
which are attributable to Adult Social 
Care (only)

Karen Smith

Scrutiny review

Adult Services 
Overview

Sept 2018

13th Feb 2019
 

      
Theme Indicator Lead Report Reporting Dates Notes

Proportion of providers registered 
with CQC in Blackpool rated “Good” 
or better

Karen Smith Adult Services 
Overview  13th Feb 2019

 

Proportion of assessments 
completed within 28 days Karen Smith

 

People who need social care in 
Blackpool will receive an 
assessment in good time, have 
access to support from a range of 
good quality providers and they 
will have a regular review of their 
needs Percentage of long-term service 

users with an annual review Karen Smith

 Adult Services 
Overview

13th Feb 2019 
or 3rd Jul 2019

 

End of year performance against all indicators will be reported in the Annual Council Plan Performance Report. This will be produced by the Corporate 
Delivery Unit and will be presented to the Committee on 3rd July 2018.

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5(b) - Headline KPI Dashboard Q1 2018/2019

KEY - Direction of Travel Icons:
ñü Performance is improving or on target
òü
ñ Small deterioration in performance / slightly off target
ò
ó No change
ñû Performance is deteriorating or off target
òû

Priority 2: Communities - create strong communities and increase resilience

Theme Indicator Outturn
2016/17

Outturn
2017/18 Q1 18/19

DoT
Target NotesPrevious

Performance

Im
pr

ov
in

g
he

al
th

ou
tc

om
es

Mortality rate from conditions considered
preventable

309.1 per
100,000 pop.

(2013-15)

316.1 per
100,000 pop.

(2014-16)
A N/A No target set

Data published by Public Health England. Significant time lag in
data being reported.Healthy life expectancy at birth (male - all

ages)
56.36 years
(2013-15)

55.10 years
(2014-16) A N/A No target set

Healthy life expectancy at birth (female - all
ages)

58.96 years
(2013-15)

57.98 years
(2014-16) A N/A No target set

Theme Indicator Outturn
2016/17

Outturn
2017/18 Q1 18/19

DoT
Target NotesPrevious

Performance

Av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 su

pp
or

t f
or

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

ne
ed

s

Delayed Transfers of Care - delays which are
attributable to Adult Social Care (only) New PI 5.9 per

100,000 pop.
4.9 per

100,000 pop. òü No target set
Average number of delayed transfers of care each day reported as
a rate per 100,000 population (18+). Performance has improved
compared with the same period in 2017/18.

Theme Indicator Outturn
2016/17

Outturn
2017/18 Q1 18/19

DoT
Target NotesPrevious

Performance

So
ci

al
 c

ar
e

pr
ov

is
io

n

Proportion of providers registered with CQC
in Blackpool rated “Good” or better 86% 88% 88% ó No target set CQC inspections on existing and newly regsitered providers - both

residential and domicillary.
Proportion of assessments completed within
28 days 70.6% 67.3% 69% ñü Target TBC Performance has improved compared with the same period in

2017/18 (64.8%)
Percentage of long-term service users with
an annual review 68.4% 81.5% 22.4% ò Target TBC Small reduction in performance compared with 2017/18 (25.1%).

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Dr Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health

Date of Meeting: 10 October 2018

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH'S ANNUAL REPORT ON THE HEALTH 
OF THE PEOPLE OF BLACKPOOL 2017

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To present to the Committee, ‘From the Ground Up: Annual report on the health of 
the people of Blackpool 2017’, the Director of Public Health’s latest annual 
independent assessment of local health needs, determinants and concerns.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 That the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee receives the report and 
endorses the recommendations made in the report, identifying issues requiring 
further scrutiny.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 To allow effective scrutiny of the Annual Report.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.3b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

Yes

3.4 Other alternative options to be considered:

None.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is:

 Priority Two – Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing 
resilience.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



5.0 Background Information

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The Director of Public Health has a statutory duty to write an annual report on the 
health of the local population.

The Annual Report on the Health of the People of Blackpool 2017 is the latest in the 
series of annual reports and is circulated widely across senior leaders and partners 
across the town.  These reports are available for public viewing the Libraries and 
recent ones are published electronically on the Blackpool Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) website at www.blackpooljsna.org.uk. 

This year’s report starts with a look back at trends for a selection of key population 
health indicators and describes the changes seen over the past ten years. Over the 
decade, the health of the population has improved.  There have been significant 
reductions in early deaths form major killers including heart disease and cancer, as 
well as in deaths from suicide.  There is good progress too in reducing smoking rates, 
one of the major lifestyle factors influencing health. There was also a strong trend in 
reducing rates of teenage pregnancies.  This progress shows the importance of 
having in place population-wide strategies based on good academic evidence to 
address key issues affecting our public’s health. There are, however, some emerging 
challenges and it is of concern to note the steep rise in rates of self-harm, and of drug 
and alcohol misuse.  Effective action by the Big Lottery’s HeadStart programme, and 
the implementation of a new Drug Prevention Strategy both offer chances to make a 
difference.

The report presents detailed analyses of the impact of population change on our 
population health statistics and considers the role of the local housing market in 
driving this change.  The picture that emerges from these analyses is that an 
abundance of low-cost accommodation is driving inward migration of a younger 
population that is less healthy and less well-education population into central areas 
of the town, and this is increasing the population level inequalities in health 
experienced within the town.   

The report contains recommendations as follows:
1. It welcomes the forthcoming Blackpool Housing Strategy. The key to success 

will be to deliver all the actions identified within the strategy, at scale and 
pace.

2. Blackpool Council has experienced amongst the highest budget cuts of 
authorities across the country and this has been especially challenging given 
the high levels of need and transience within the town. Although the Council 
has been very creative in managing these significant challenges, it is 
important now to recognise the need for future funding formulas to fully 
incorporate the high level of need and address the root causes of ill health 
locally.

Page 26

http://www.blackpooljsna.org.uk/


Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

List of Appendices:

Appendix 6(a): Public Health Annual Report 2017

6.0 Legal considerations:

6.1 The local authority has a duty to publish the annual report of the Director of Public 
Health (section 73B(5) and (6) of the 2006 Act, inserted by section 31 of the 2012 
Act).

7.0 Human Resources considerations:

7.1 None. 

8.0 Equalities considerations:

8.1 Reducing inequalities in health is a key activity for public health and features and a 
fundamental consideration in many of the work areas and initiatives discussed in the 
report.  

9.0 Financial considerations:

9.1 None.

10.0 Risk management considerations:

10.1 None.

11.0 Ethical considerations:

11.1 None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1 None. 

13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HEALTH 
OF THE PEOPLE 
OF BLACKPOOL 
2017

FROM THE GROUND UP

Appendix 6(a)

Page 29



 

CONTENT

2

Foreword

1. How health in Blackpool is changing

2. Housing and health in Blackpool

3. Interventions to make a difference

4. Recommendations 

Appendix Health Profile 2017: Blackpool

Page 30



 

These include collaboration with Blackpool’s Better Start programme 
to introduce a new model for health visiting, which will see all 
young children within the town benefit from at least eight contacts 
with their health visitor to monitor their development, and provide 
support to parents. The new approach aims to ensure that all our 
infants and young children can achieve their full potential in terms 
of growth and development, and are fully ready to learn when they 
start school. I look forward to seeing this new model embed over 
the coming year. Staying with young children for a moment,  
I am pleased to report that we will be working with national Public 
Health England colleagues after being identified as a pilot site for 
their Start Well programme to promote good oral health amongst 
our children.

Members of my public health team have worked closely with 
Positive Steps and Horizon drug and alcohol treatment services to 
submit a successful bid to Public Health England to take part in a 
research project on Individual Placement Support for people with 
Drug and Alcohol addiction. 

The project will offer support to those in drug and alcohol treatment 
services to gain training, education and employment. The project 
will run as a pilot over the next two years and is anticipated to 
make a difference to supporting these individuals back to work and 
sustain their employment.

There has been excellent progress in work with the local NHS on the 
development of new neighbourhood models of care and support 
to patients and communities. We have played a key role in making 
sure that commissioning decisions have been made based on the 
needs, opportunities and solutions to improving community health 
and wellbeing to ensure that health and social care providers move 
beyond medical intervention, treatment and care. Social prescribing, 
using our new Directory of Service (FYI) is now a key element of any 
treatment and care intervention planning.

This year marks my tenth anniversary as Director of Public Health for Blackpool. 2017 
has seen the completion of a number of major pieces of work that will help improve 
the health and wellbeing of Blackpool residents.  

 Foreword

3

Page 31



Members of my team have taken a lead in putting people and 
communities at the heart of current and future planning of services, 
with the ambition to incorporate fully this ‘coproduction’ approach 
as the way forward. We have facilitated discussions (including 
Integration 20:20 events) between the NHS and wider partners, 
such as my Council colleagues and the voluntary, community and 
faith sectors, to ensure that all are aware of the plans and ambitions 
with these new models of care.  
 
All new neighbourhood models need all key partners around the 
table; and that includes people and communities if they are to 
be fully integrated. A Self Care Strategy for the Fylde Coast has 
recently been completed and sets the tone of our ambitions to 
ensure everyone has the opportunity to make informed lifestyle 
decisions, can access healthy lifestyle choices and are equal partners 
in any decisions about the care and support they may receive as 
patients should they fall ill. Our work on resident-led Citizens 
Inquiries will continue in 2018 as we take a further step towards 
Integration 20:20.

The priority of reducing inequalities in health has featured in some 
way in all my reports as Director of Public Health for Blackpool and 
indeed many of those by my predecessors. The latest release of 
data for local authorities shows that not only do Blackpool residents 
continue to experience the lowest life expectancy in the country, but 
this has slightly dropped for the first time in 20 years. Blackpool is 
not alone and it offers no comfort to note that other disadvantaged 
areas of the country also see this happening. Life expectancy is 
a useful indicator of the population’s health, but it does mask 
important changes in the types of health conditions experienced.  
In the first section of this report, I describe how health has changed 
for the residents of the town over the past ten years. 
 
The importance of lifestyle and wider social and environmental 
conditions in determining our population’s health is another 
common feature of my reports. New analyses by my team has 
explored wider factors that may be contributing to reduced life 
expectancy in the town and has focused attention on the issue of 
the abundant supply of poor quality, cheap housing and how this 
may be driving poor health in the town in a number of ways. The 
links between physical conditions of homes and residents health  
are well accepted and the evidence-base can point us towards 
effective intervention. The relationship between housing supply, 
population flow and population health is more complex and there  

is concern that this may be drawing people with poor health into the 
town. This is an important area for further research and discussion. 
In section two, I present local analyses that I hope will stimulate  
this debate.    

In 2018, I look forward to the publication of a Green and Blue 
Infrastructure Strategy by Blackpool Council. Together with 
the ten year action plan, this will help to make the most of 
Blackpool’s existing assets, identify where more parks or green 
spaces are required, build green infrastructure into plans for 
the future of the town centre and explain how we plan to 
increase the engagement of local people to maintain our local 
gardens, trees and parks. A key part of the plan is the creation 
of a Community Farm as part of the redevelopment of the 
former City Learning Centre site. This development, known as 
@theGrange, brings a new community-focused centre for the 
Grange Park community and people living in the surrounding 
area. The centre will include our first community shop, sponsored 
by Blackpool's Fairness Commission, which will sell, amongst other 
things, produce from the farm @theGrange will be the hub at the 
heart of the plans to develop further housing on Grange Park.

Over the coming year we can also expect to see work progress 
on plans to develop Whyndyke Garden Village, a new housing 
development on the boundary of Blackpool and Fylde. Backed 
by NHS England, this will be a demonstrator site promoting good 
practice nationally and internationally in putting health and 
wellbeing at the centre of new housing developments.

It is evident to me that the health and wellbeing of Blackpool's 
residents is improving, however, there remain considerable 
challenges we must address in order to build on and accelerate  
the progress made.

Dr Arif Rajpura Director of Public Health

 

FOREWORD

4

Page 32



  

2. HOW HEALTH 
IN BLACKPOOL 
IS CHANGING

FROM THE GROUND UP

Ten years on from my appointment as 
Blackpool’s Director of Public Health, it 
seems timely to look at how the health  
of residents in the town has changed  
over the decade.

We can use life expectancy to summarise today’s death rates amongst 
different age groups in our population in a single figure. Over the past 
ten years, life expectancy in Blackpool has increased from 73.2 to 
74.3 for men and from 78.8 to 79.4 for women. Whilst life expectancy 
is a convenient summary, there is more to learn about how our 
population’s health is changing by looking at a range of indicators 
including trends in specific diseases, health risk factors and wider 
determinants of health.  Blackpool’s Health Profiles include a 
selection of indicators and the 2017 release is included in Appendix 1 
of this report. 

In the analyses that follow, I present a selection of indicators 
from this profile and from Public Health England’s Public Health 
Outcomes Framework (https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/) that show 
particularly notable changes.

5

Page 33



Trends in premature deaths from    
heart disease, stroke and cancer

Cardiovascular disease (heart disease and stroke) and cancer are 
the two most common broad causes of death locally and nationally.  
According to the Office for National Statistics (ONS), for England and 
Wales in 2016, cardiovascular disease accounted for 28.5% of all 
deaths registered and cancer accounted for 25.5%. Therefore, taken 
together, these two broad causes account for over half of all deaths.

I am pleased to report significant improvements in 
Blackpool.  Most notable is that early deaths from 
cardiovascular disease have reduced by a third and  
we now see more than 65 fewer people each year in 
Blackpool die before they reach their 75th birthday.   
The improvement in premature deaths from cancer is 
more modest at around 4%, but still important given  
the numbers of people affected.

These diseases are major killers and even small improvements in 
death rates can have a significant impact on our population’s life 
expectancy. The NHS Health Checks Programme, commissioned 
locally by the council, is a systematic way of finding people with  
high blood pressure and other risk factors, and providing advice  
and referral for treatment.

Refer to Figure 1

Trends in smoking

The prevalence of smoking in a population is a major contributor to 
the differences or inequalities in health seen between populations.  
Over the last ten years in Blackpool, we have seen a steady 
improvement in smoking rates and hints of an acceleration in this 
decline in the past few years. This trend follows the national pattern, 
and whilst rates in Blackpool are above average, they have kept 
pace with the national improvement. Rates amongst the population 
subgroup of ‘Routine and Manual’ workers, who typically have the 
highest rates of smoking, have similarly improved in line with the 
national picture. It is encouraging to see indications that this may 
be happening at a faster rate in Blackpool, which has the effect of 
narrowing the gap between our rates and the national average.  

Smoking related deaths appear to have slightly improved overall.  
Although higher than average, this again appears to reflect the 
national trend. It will be some years before reduced rates of 
smoking impact on smoking related death rates. 

Smoking remains the single biggest lifestyle factor affecting health 
in the town and we must continue to make progress to reduce 
smoking. My team is currently developing new arrangements to 
provide effective support to help people quit.

Refer to Figure 2

Overweight and obesity

The weight of our children has been the subject of much attention 
in the media in recent years. Disadvantaged areas across the 
country report higher than average rates of overweight and obesity 
amongst children. Rates have been rising over the past ten years, 
and this rise became more pronounced from 2011/2012 onwards.  
The latest set of figures appear to show a change in our local rates 
that may provide early signs of improvement. It is important to be 
cautious in interpreting this single figure and we need to see this 
sustained if we are to conclude that rates have turned around. The 
current rates for Year 6 children (aged 10-11) in Blackpool are in line 
with the national average. However, I consider the national average 
is unacceptably high. It remains that one in four young children 
are overweight or obese when they start school and one in three 
children leave primary school overweight or obese.

Obesity places individuals of any age at increased risk of a number 
of serious health conditions. Losing weight and keeping a healthy 
weight can be very difficult to achieve. The environment around 
us can often undermine our best efforts to make healthier choices.  
The underlying causes of obesity are complex and it is too simplistic 
to expect education and messaging alone to make a difference. We 
have to make healthier choices easier wherever we can. Blackpool 
Council’s Declaration on Healthy Weight and the resulting actions 
will see the Council doing its part and encouraging organisations, 
businesses and communities across the town to join in action. 

Refer to Figure 3

Trends in self-harm and suicide

Suicide rates and admissions to hospital for self-harm offers an 
indication of the mental health of our population. Deaths from 
suicide tend to occur amongst younger and middle age groups 
and this can have a disproportionately large impact on the 
life expectancy figure. Deaths from suicide make a significant 
contribution in explaining the lower than average life expectancy 
rate amongst the town’s residents.

The relatively small number of deaths from suicide seen amongst 
Blackpool residents means that on a technical level, trends can be 
unstable and need careful interpretation. However, the overall picture 
is that suicide rates are moving in the right direction and improving.

Rates of self-harm have increased sharply over the last decade.  
They appear to have stabilised and slightly improved over the past 
four years, but remain very high and strikingly different to the 
national picture. This highlights the importance of programmes 
such as HeadStart that promote mental wellbeing and support the 
development of emotional resilience.

Refer to Figure 4

 

1. HOW HEALTH IN BLACKPOOL IS CHANGING

6

Page 34



  

7

Premature mortality (age <75) from cardiovascular diseases and cancer

Smoking

Prevalence of overweight (including obese) among children in Reception and Year 6 

Self harm and suicide

Figure 1

Figure 2

Figure 3

Figure 4

Page 35



Trends in alcohol-related harm,   
substance misuse and drug-related deaths

Higher than average rates of alcohol-related conditions and 
substance misuse are, along with suicide, important factors that 
help explain Blackpool’s lower than average life expectancy. Rates 
of alcohol-related harm have risen steadily over the decade and 
diverged from the national average, although have improved over 
the last few years. Rates of substance misuse amongst young people 
have risen steeply and at very much greater rates than the national 
average. To me this highlights just how vital it is that the Council and 
other organisations across the town work alongside the community 
to improve the opportunities and aspirations of our young people.  

Drug-related deaths rates for Blackpool are based on small numbers 
and so show considerable year on year variation, but overall the 
trend is increasing. These deaths tend to occur amongst younger 
age groups and therefore even small numbers of deaths can make 
a significant impact on the life expectancy figure for an area. These 
trends are recognised and my team has recently led the production 
of a Drug Prevention Strategy for the town. I commend this strategy 
to colleagues across the Council and to partner organisations, who 
can all play a part in addressing this issue.

Refer to Figure 5 & 6

Trends in teenage pregnancy 

Teenage pregnancy is an acknowledged public health issue since it 
is associated with poorer social, economic, educational and health 
and wellbeing outcomes for young parents and their children. The 
number of teenage pregnancies has fallen considerably over the 
past decade from 176 during 2005 to 108 in 2015.  

Blackpool rates remain high relative to the national average, but 
these have changed more quickly in Blackpool than they have 
nationally and the gap has narrowed. This is significant progress  
and it is important to recognise the evidence-based strategy that 
has been in place tackling this issue in Blackpool.

Refer to Figure 7 

Homelessness

My final choice of indicator is particularly relevant in the context 
of the following section, which looks at the links between housing 
and health. Homelessness is associated with severe poverty and 
is a social determinant of health. It is also associated with adverse 
health, education and social outcomes, particularly for children.  
The data discussed here relates to the number of households that 
have presented themselves to their local authority, but under 
homelessness legislation have been deemed not in priority need.  
The majority of the people that fall under this cohort are single 
homeless people. Households and individuals that are eligible, but 
not in priority need or are in temporary accommodation can have 
greater public health needs than the population as a whole.

Data published in the Public Health Outcomes Framework appears 
to indicate a rise in the number of households accepted as non-
priority homeless in Blackpool. These figures require careful 
interpretation as they are partly driven by whether councils have 
chosen to undertake a homelessness assessment, and practices 
in regards to assessments varies between councils and over time. 
However, we can say that overall the picture is one of consistently 
high levels of homelessness in Blackpool over the last five years with 
some slight rises in recent years.

Refer to Figure 8 

 

1. HOW HEALTH IN BLACKPOOL IS CHANGING

8

Page 36



  

9

Hospital admissions from alcohol Hospital admissions from alcohol

Drug related deaths 

Trend in conception rates, all ages and under 18 years

Statutory homelessness - eligible homelessness people not in priority need, Blackpool

Figure 5

Figure 6

Figure 7

Figure 8

Page 37



Summary

We can see that overall the health of our resident population has 
improved over the past decade. Particularly significant are the 
improvements in early deaths from major killers of heart disease, 
stroke and cancer, as well as in deaths from suicide. There is good 
progress too in improving smoking rates, one of the major lifestyle 
factors influencing health.  

It is important to continue with action to maintain this 
momentum if we are to secure the contribution this can 
make to reduce inequalities in the years to come. 

Similarly, there have been significant reductions in teenage 
pregnancy, which will help improve social, health and wellbeing  
and educational outcomes for young women in the town.

 

The steep rises seen in self-harm and in drug and alcohol-misuse 
especially amongst young people are alarming and a cause for 
concern. I take this opportunity to highlight the importance of 
programmes such as HeadStart and of the Drug Prevention Strategy, 
both of which offer real chances to make a difference.

It's great to see some of the progress that has been made, and vital 
that we continue to build on this. Understanding the underlying 
drivers of our population health statistics is key to developing and 
refining action to improve health. One area that is worthy of closer 
inspection is the role of that housing, in particular the characteristics 
of the local housing market, plays in driving migration to the town.  
There are concerns that people moving into the town are in poorer 
health. I explore this consideration in more detail in the next section 
which presents analyses by my team on migration.

 

1. HOW HEALTH IN BLACKPOOL IS CHANGING

10

Page 38



    

2. HOUSING    
AND HEALTH    
IN BLACKPOOL

FROM THE GROUND UP

In this section, I firstly consider the issue 
of housing and health from a range of 
perspectives including housing quality and 
health, homelessness and health and the 
impact of housing supply and demand on 
migration and population.  

Secondly, I present recent local analyses that explore the impact  
of population change on our local population health indicators. 

Thirdly, I look at housing related interventions that could improve 
our local population’s health and wellbeing.

11

Page 39



Housing and health: issues to consider

Housing quality and health 
There is little doubt that for individual residents, living in poor 
housing exposes them to a range of physical hazards and may be 
associated with overcrowding and social isolation. These issues 
can have a disproportionate impact on vulnerable groups in our 
communities. For individuals, the impact of the physical condition 
of housing on health is well understood. Hazards such as excess 
cold, damp and mould or structural problems (such as poor lighting 
or lack of handrails on stairways) increase the risk of cardiovascular 
disease, respiratory disease, depression and anxiety and accidents.1 

Homelessness 
Being homeless or not having a stable home are also well 
documented risk factors for poorer health, particularly mental 
health problems.  

You count as homeless if you are:

• staying with friends or family
• staying in a hostel, night shelter or Bed and Breakfast (B&B)
• squatting (because you have no legal right to stay)
• at risk of violence or abuse in your home
• living in poor conditions that affect your health
• living apart from your family because you do not have a place   
 to live together2

Source: Shelter, 2016  

 

1. Parliamentary Office of Science and Technology. Housing and Health.  
POSTNOTE Number 371, January 2011 
 
2. http://england.shelter.org.uk/housing_advice/homelessness/rules/what_is_homelessness

 
Population turnover and health

A number of academic researchers have written about population 
change and mobility and have proposed models for describing 
these patterns. In this section I describe two of these models 
that have been applied within UK populations. These models are 
helpful in understanding the factors driving population movement, 
some aspects of the models may require modification for the 
context in Blackpool. The term ‘spatial segregation’ describes the 
phenomenon where residents become grouped in areas according 
to socioeconomic status, so that people on low incomes are 
concentrated in more disadvantaged areas. The subject has  
been recognised and discussed amongst academic researchers  
for many years and it is evident that the picture varies over time  
and between places.  

However, the processes and scale of flows that drive such changes 
in populations and communities are less clear. A study of 2001 
England and Wales Census data suggested that population flows act 
to continually reinforce spatial segregation particularly in deprived 
areas through net loss of better qualified individuals (those who 
get on, get out). The researchers offer some evidence to support 
this although it is somewhat weak and they suggest the effect 
may be small.3 The same study concluded that demographics, not 
deprivation, drives population turnover. Neighbourhoods with high 
proportions of young adults and families with young children are 
most likely to have high turnover.

A more recent study of working age people using the 2001 Scottish 
Census has attempted to quantify flow and found that the 1991 
and 2001 populations comprised very different individuals and that 
one third of the original people had ‘exited’ and been replaced 
with others (‘entries’).4 The same author suggests that exits tend 
to increase segregation, whereas entries tend to reduce it. This 
conclusion assumes that entries into deprived communities are 
typically younger, healthier and better educated and that a process 
known as the ‘demographic conveyor’ is at work. This process 
describes how populations in deprived areas steadily turnover in 
relation to the age of residents. Younger people tend to move up 
the neighbourhood hierarchy as they age and their incomes rise, 
although applied to the Blackpool context, we will see shortly that 
this assumption may not hold true locally. The same authors also 
note that individual decisions to move are dominated by housing 
needs and demand and how easy it is to move. If people are not 
able to move, then segregation falls.

In summary, the research literature suggests that a number of 
processes may be driving mobility and population changes in our 
deprived communities. Three broad processes appear to feature: 

1. demographic characteristics and age-related churn;
2. housing needs and demands; and
3. how easy or difficult it is for people to move. 
 
3. Bailey N and Livingston M. Population turnover and area deprivation.  

Joseph Rowntree Foundation (JRF), 2007.  

https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/population-turnover-and-area-deprivation 
 
4. Bailey N. How spatial segregation changes over time: sorting out the sorting processes. 

Environment and Planning A 2012, volume 44, pages 705-722

 

2. HOUSING AND HEALTH IN BLACKPOOL

12

Page 40



Analyses: Local life expectancy trends    
and migration patterns

Life expectancy is one of the key indicators of health in a population. 
Life expectancy is the average number of years that a new baby is 
expected to live if current age-specific mortality rates continue to 
apply through their lifetime. Across England, a steady improvement 
in life expectancy has been seen since the Second World War, but 
that has slowed in recent years for both males and females, and 
this pattern is evident in Blackpool. Figure 9 shows that although 
life expectancy in Blackpool has continued to improve over the 
past 20 years, it has not kept pace with England as a whole and 
now a considerable gap in life expectancy exists between Blackpool 
and England. Life expectancy in males in Blackpool is 74.2 years, 
compared to 79.5 years for England, a gap of 5.3 years. Life 
expectancy in females in Blackpool is 79.5 years, compared to  
83.1 years in England, a gap of 3.6 years. The factors that create  
this long-term, structural gap in life expectancy between Blackpool 
and England as a whole are important to explore.  

 
Male life expectancy in Blackpool is the lowest of any local authority 
in England and female life expectancy is the second lowest.  

Figures 10 and 11 show there is considerable variation within the 
town. Male life expectancy in Stanley ward is 78.8 years compared 
to 65.8 years in Bloomfield ward, a 13-year difference. Male life 
expectancy in Bloomfield ward is the second lowest of all electoral 
wards in England. There is a gap of seven years in female life 
expectancy between Stanley ward (83.8 years).

    

13

Figure 9     Trend in life expectancy at birth

Page 41



Male Life Expectancy by Ward
2011-15

78 to 78.8 (4)
75.9 to 78 (4)
74.9 to 75.9 (4)
73.4 to 74.9 (4)
65.8 to 73.4 (5)

 

Figure 10 

Male life expectancy 
by ward 2011-15

Source: PHE Local Health

1414

Page 42



    

Figure 11 

Female life expectancy 
by ward 2011-15

Source: PHE Local Health

1515

Page 43



Migration and population turnover  
 
Figure 12 presents data gathered in the 2011 census and suggests 
that Blackpool is a net importer of people with poorer health, 
unemployment and precarious labour and a net exporter of people 
with good health and skilled labour.

The availability of seasonal employment and low cost 
accommodation are two key drivers of the type of migration  
we see in Figure 12. Many holiday flats and Bed and Breakfasts  
in the central area of Blackpool have been converted into houses 
of multiple occupancy (HMOs). In Blackpool there are a large 
number of buildings that have been converted for use by more 
than one household, with many of these made up of self-contained 
flats.  While the latest local planning policies require higher quality 
conversions, the town has a legacy of more than 3,000 poor quality 
HMOs producing high yields for landlords, fuelled by Housing 
Benefit payments and a constant demand from people migrating 
to Blackpool from other parts of the country. Surrounding areas 
of small terraced houses have also become part of this transient 
market. As over 50% of homes in inner Blackpool are privately 
rented, this creates entrenched deprivation and is the antithesis  
of stable communities.

Approximately 8,000 people move to Blackpool from elsewhere in 
the UK each year, with a similar number leaving the town. This level 
of migration helps explain the 5,667 entirely new housing benefit 
claimants in Blackpool in the financial year 2013/2014. 86% of these 
claimants had a last address outside of Blackpool borough.  

On a person’s death, coroners record where individuals were born 
and this data can be examined. For Blackpool residents who died 
between the ages of 35 and 74 (an important group in contributing 
to Blackpool’s lower life expectancy) over the three years between 
2012 and 2014, 21% of people were born in Blackpool compared to 
45% in Lancashire and 48% in Blackburn with Darwen. In Blackpool, 
only 4% of those born elsewhere were born outside the UK. It is 
not recorded at what age individuals moved to Blackpool, but this 
analysis supports what is known about the high level of migration to 
Blackpool and the potential vulnerability of some of the people who 
move to the town.

 

2. HOUSING AND HEALTH IN BLACKPOOL

16

Figure 12     Blackpool Net Inflow and Outflow of People per Year, 2011

Source: Census 2011. Tables UKMIG005 & UKMIG007

Page 44



    

17

Quality of housing in Blackpool 

The 2008 Private Sector House Condition Survey showed that 
38.7% of all private sector dwellings in Blackpool were classed 
as non-decent compared to an average 27.1% for England.  
The same survey found that poor housing conditions in Blackpool 
were mostly associated with pre 1919 properties, the private rented 
sector, converted flats, occupiers on the lowest incomes and those 
in receipt of benefits. 46.7% of private sector dwellings occupied 
by vulnerable tenants are estimated to be non-decent with the 
majority being concentrated in inner Blackpool.

Houses of multiple occupancy (HMOs)

The relocation of potentially vulnerable people into the town 
and high level of transience within Blackpool leaves many people 
socially isolated and in poor quality housing. The extent of houses 
of multiple occupancy (HMO) in Blackpool is estimated using the 
MOSAIC population segmentation tool, with its classification  
L50 – Renting a room a good match to HMO locations in Blackpool.5  
Figure 13 shows the spread of HMOs across the town. The locations 
identified in Figure 13 are the same areas that experience the 
highest levels of disadvantage in Blackpool, as can be seen when 
compared against Figure 14. The location of HMOs also correlates 
closely with the electoral wards with the lowest life expectancy 
identified in Figures 10 and 11. In Blackpool, approximately 23,000 
people live in the type of accommodation identified in Figure 13.  

Figure 13 
Approximate location of HMOs

Figure 14 
Communities in the 10% most Deprived in England (IMD 2015)

Source: Index of multiple deprivation 2015 

5. Source: MOSAIC

http://www.experian.co.uk/marketing-services/products/mosaic/mosaic-in-detail.html

MOSAIC Type

Page 45



Figure 15 shows areas of Blackpool where over 10% of the 
population have moved from elsewhere in the UK to the 
neighbourhood in the previous year, as at the 2011 census.  
This demonstrates that the same central areas of the town 
highlighted in previous charts, have the highest levels of inward 
migration. In fact, in the areas highlighted in Figure 15, 13.3% of  
the population arrived from elsewhere in the UK in the previous 
year, compared to 7.7% in the rest of Blackpool and 8.2% across  
the North West. 

Figure 15 
Migration to Blackpool from with the UK over a single year

Source: ONS – Census 2011

Figure 16 shows that, as well as the high level of migration into the 
central neighbourhoods of Blackpool, educational attainment of the 
adult population tends to be lower, with 35.7% of adults holding no 
qualification in the central areas, compared to 29.5% in the rest of 
Blackpool and 24.8% across the North West.

 
Figure 16 
Educational Attainment - No Qualification

Source: Census 2011

 

2. HOUSING AND HEALTH IN BLACKPOOL

18

37.3% to 41.3% (4)
33.6% to 37.3% (3)
30.0% to 33.6% (4)
27.5% to 30.0% (3)
23.4% to 27.5% (5)

Page 46



    

19

The central area of Blackpool has a younger population profile than 
the rest of the town, with 44.1% of residents under the age of 35, 
compared to 39.2% across the rest of the town. Deaths that occur 
at younger ages have a disproportionate impact on the overall 
life expectancy of a community. This pattern of mortality at much 
younger ages is something that can be seen quite clearly in the L50 
– Renting a room group, with high rates of mortality in those aged 
under 65 and particularly among men. 

High levels of substance misuse, particularly of alcohol, opiate and 
crack cocaine is seen in these areas of the town and contribute to 
the unusual pattern of mortality. 

For example, 16.5% of the Blackpool population lived in this type 
of accommodation, in the period 2011 to 2015, yet 48.0% of drug 
related deaths and 37.0% of alcoholic liver disease deaths occurred 
in this group of Blackpool residents. 30.5% of suicides of Blackpool 
residents also occurred in this group. This is likely a reflection that 
residents of HMOs are more likely to be socially isolated with no 
supportive networks, and corresponds with very high rates of 
substance misuse.

Page 47



Summary and conclusions

Much of the data presented is descriptive in nature or based on 
modelled estimates and aspects of these local analyses are not 
without limitations. However taken together, the picture that 
is beginning to emerge from this collection of analyses can be 
summarised as follows:

• Blackpool has a net outflow of working people in managerial   
 and intermediate occupations.
• Central areas of the town see high levels of inward migration   
 and a younger population. This process initially seems to fit   
 with the ‘demographic conveyor’ effect, however some factors 
 that underpin the ‘demographic conveyer’ effect appear not to 
 hold true for Blackpool. We do not see inward migration of 
 healthy, well-educated and relatively well-paid young people  
 in the same way that deprived areas of big cities do, which 
 would serve to limit socio-economic polarisation.

• Instead, we appear to see a variation of this effect and   
 suggest that an abundance of low cost accommodation   
 is driving migration of a less healthy and less well-educated   
 population into the central area of Blackpool. The population   
 leaving (exits) is replaced with individuals (entries) with   
 less means and greater needs. 
• Blackpool has a very large quantity of low quality, low cost   
 private rented accommodation, largely consisting of HMOs.   
 This means it is easy to move to Blackpool and easy to move   
 within Blackpool.
• Our local analyses appear to support a hypothesis that Blackpool  
 is a net importer of poor health and net exporter of good health,  
 a scenario which is consistent with increasing spatial segregation  
 along socioeconomic lines.

 

2. HOUSING AND HEALTH IN BLACKPOOL

20

Page 48



    

3. INTERVENTIONS  
TO MAKE A 
DIFFERENCE

FROM THE GROUND UP

There are three things to focus on in  
this section. 
Firstly, the national toolkit developed by Professor Chris Bentley 
for the Department of Health, which sets out opportunities for 
achieving reduced inequalities and improved life expectancy 
through local action at scale. 

Secondly, the Council’s Housing Strategy, which is currently  
being prepared. 

Thirdly is the Council’s Homelessness Strategy, also in  
preparation at the time of writing.

21

Page 49



Reducing health inequalities through action at scale

Several years ago I had the pleasure of welcoming Professor  
Chris Bentley, an expert in interventions to reduce inequalities,  
to Blackpool as part of the Department for Health initiative to 
increase life expectancy. Professor Bentley’s work focused on 
local analyses of the causes of reduced life expectancy, identifying 
effective interventions and introducing these at scale. Following  
this work, some good progress has been made particularly with 
regard to some of the shorter-term interventions. For example,   
I described earlier the marked improvement in premature deaths  
from cardiovascular diseases. It is helpful to revisit aspects of   
Professor Bentley’s work as action on poor housing featured in  
the underlying model.

Figure 17 is based on a model developed by Professor 
Bentley and illustrates interventions that can have a positive 
impact on the overall life expectancy of a population and 
includes action on poor housing. The interventions have 
been categorised according to whether the impact is likely to 
be over the short, medium or long term. The national model 
indicates that tackling poor housing as an action can drive 
positive health outcomes in the longer term. However, we 
have seen that in Blackpool the volume of low-cost rental 
accommodation may be importing a population with poorer 
health into the town. 

Reducing the supply of this type of housing should have an impact 
on migration to the town, internal transience within the town and 
the overall quality of housing within Blackpool. We have included a 
suggested adaptation to the model, to reflect the opportunities that 
action across a range of housing issues offer in terms of affect across 
the short and medium term, as well as the longer-term indicated in 
the original model.  

 

3. INTERVENTIONS TO MAKE A DIFFERENCE

22

Years 
5 10 15 20 

Short-term 
impact 

Medium-
term impact 

Long-term 
impact 

For example intervening through lifestyle and behavioural change 
such as stopping smoking, reducing alcohol related harm and weight 
management to reduce mortality in the medium term. 

For example intervening to reduce risk of mortality in people with 
established disease such as CVD, cancer, diabetes (identify and treat 
model).  Interventions to reduce smoking in pregnancy. 

For example intervening to modify the social determinants of health 
such as worklessness, poor housing, poverty and poor education 
attainment to impact on mortality in the long term. 

Quantity of low quality 
accommodation 

Source: Public Health England (modified) 

Figure 17    Timescales for interventions to increase life expectancy 
 

Page 50



Blackpool Council’s Housing Strategy 2018:  
Building a Better Blackpool

At the time of writing, colleagues within the Council are in the 
final stages of drafting a Housing Strategy for the town and kindly 
allowed me to have sight of the draft. The Housing Strategy presents 
the Council’s approach to address the housing issues within the 
borough. It sets the vision and priorities to support the delivery of 
the Council’s plan to make Blackpool a great place to live in, with  
a thriving economy that supports a happy and healthy community.

The Strategy identifies four priorities for action:

1. New housing supply 
Local authorities are uniquely placed to address housing supply, 
acting as both a direct provider and as an enabler of private and 
social housing developments. Local action includes introducing 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) for New Affordable 
Housing and to manage transition of guest houses to quality homes. 
The strategy highlights the need for government funding to enable 
action to reduce the density of established HMOs and bring forward 
quality new housing stock.

2. Improving the private rented sector 
Local action includes the establishment of ‘My Blackpool Home’ 
a wholly owned Council Company to buy up failing HMOs and 
guest houses to improve quality, reduce density and promote 
standards in the private rental sector through lettings and  
property management.

 
3. Stabilising lives 
In recent years, pressures on budgets have seen withdrawal of 
housing-related support, but new funding opportunities are being 
secured to alleviate homelessness, support vulnerable residents  
and address transience.

4. Increasing delivery capacity 
A key action here is the creation of a Housing Board to pioneer new 
ways of tackling issues faced by local communities and coordinate 
activities within the town.

The overall message of the Housing Strategy is that there 
is an urgent need to re-structure the housing stock, 
particularly in inner Blackpool, to deliver a more sustainable 
and attractive mix of accommodation. This must take into 
account needs associated with those in the population with 
specific needs including a growing older population.

The priorities within the new Housing Strategy will provide 
opportunities for important action to improve the quality of the 
existing housing stock and promote mixed-income communities.  
The legacy of over 3,000 poor quality HMOs, primarily located in 
central areas of the town is a very significant challenge and reducing 
the volume of this stock is required at scale and pace if we are to 
reduce inward migration and to stabilise communities.

    

23

Use of existing enforcement tools, such as selective licensing and additional licensing can help improve quality, but these tools can 
only enforce to statutory standards, which are low. Page 51



Homelessness Prevention Strategy 2018-21

Reducing homelessness and helping people to establish themselves 
and maintain a stable home is important both for the individuals 
themselves and of the wider town. A stable home can support 
successful education, employment and good health.

Also in preparation, at the time of writing this report, is the Council’s 
Homelessness Prevention Strategy. This sets out how the Council 
will deliver its new duties with regard to reducing homelessness, 
which are effective from April 2018.  

 
 
The strategy focuses on three key areas of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act:

1.  Preventing homelessness by working with partners to identify   
 risk and intervene earlier. 

2.  Resolve homelessness efficiently to minimise harm to an   
 individual’s health and wellbeing. 

3.  Support individuals to avoid repeat homelessness.

The Strategy identifies the role of the poor quality accommodation 
on offer in the private rental section and notes that, alongside the 
town’s low wage economy, this continues to drive transience and 
disadvantage, which directly affect levels of homelessness within 
the town.  

 

3. INTERVENTIONS TO MAKE A DIFFERENCE

24

Page 52



4. RECOMMENDATIONS

FROM THE GROUND UP

1. 
I welcome the forthcoming Blackpool Housing Strategy and 
the recommendations within it to deliver new housing supply, 
improve the private rental sector, stabilise lives to prevent and 
resolve homelessness, and increase delivery capacity internally 
within the Council. The key to success will be to deliver all these 
recommendations at scale and pace.

2. 
Blackpool Council has experienced amongst the highest 
budget cuts of authorities across the country and this has 
been especially challenging given the high levels of need and 
transience within the town. 

Although the Council has been very creative in managing these 
significant challenges, it is important now to recognise the need 
for future funding formulas to fully incorporate the high level of 
need and allow us to address the root causes of ill health locally.

25

Page 53



APPENDIX 
Health Profile 2017: Blackpool

4. RECOMMENDATIONS

Health summary for Blackpool
The chart below shows how the health of people in this area compares with the rest of England. This areaʼs result for each indicator is shown as a circle. The average rate for
England is shown by the black line, which is always at the centre of the chart. The range of results for all local areas in England is shown as a grey bar. A red circle means
that this area is significantly worse than England for that indicator; however, a green circle may still indicate an important public health problem.

E06000009

Significantly worse than England average

Not significantly different from England average

Significantly better than England average

Not compared

Regional average€ England average
England

worst
England
best25th

percentile
75th

percentile

Domain Indicator
Period Local

count
Local
value

Eng
value

Eng
worst England range

Eng
best

1 Deprivation score (IMD 2015) 2015 n/a 42.0 21.8 42.0 5.0

2 Children in low income families (under 16s) 2014 8,410 32.1 20.1 39.2 6.6

3 Statutory homelessness 2015/16 575 8.9 0.9

4 GCSEs achieved 2015/16 666 45.5 57.8 44.8 78.7

5 Violent crime (violence offences) 2015/16 5,157 36.7 17.2 36.7 4.5

6 Long term unemployment 2016 665 7.8 ^20 3.7 ^20 13.8 0.4

O
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

7 Smoking status at time of delivery 2015/16 463 26.0 10.6 $1 26.0 1.8

8 Breastfeeding initiation 2014/15 1,189 61.6 74.3 47.2 92.9

9 Obese children (Year 6) 2015/16 341 22.5 19.8 28.5 9.4

10 Admission episodes for alcohol-specific
conditions (under 18s)†

2013/14 - 15/16 76 87.8 37.4 121.3 10.5

11 Under 18 conceptions 2015 108 43.8 20.8 43.8 5.4C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

an
d 

yo
un

g
pe

op
le

's 
he

al
th

12 Smoking prevalence in adults 2016 n/a 22.5 15.5 25.7 4.9

13 Percentage of physically active adults 2015 n/a 47.9 57.0 44.8 69.8

14 Excess weight in adults 2013 - 15 n/a 73.9 64.8 76.2 46.5

Ad
ul

ts
'

he
al

th
 a

nd
lif

es
ty

le

15 Cancer diagnosed at early stage 2015 265 41.7 52.4 39.0 63.1

16 Hospital stays for self-harm† 2015/16 866 635.3 196.5 635.3 55.7

17 Hospital stays for alcohol-related harm† 2015/16 1,612 1163.3 647 1,163 374

18 Recorded diabetes 2014/15 10,477 7.4 6.4 9.2 3.3

19 Incidence of TB 2013 - 15 40 9.5 12.0 85.6 0.0

20 New sexually transmitted infections (STI) 2016 1,005 1150.3 795 3,288 223

21 Hip fractures in people aged 65 and over† 2015/16 182 642.4 589 820 312

D
is

ea
se

 a
nd

 p
oo

r h
ea

lth

22 Life expectancy at birth (Male) 2013 - 15 n/a 74.3 79.5 74.3 83.4

23 Life expectancy at birth (Female) 2013 - 15 n/a 79.4 83.1 79.4 86.7

24 Infant mortality 2013 - 15 34 6.5 3.9 8.2 0.8

25 Killed and seriously injured on roads 2013 - 15 183 43.4 38.5 103.7 10.4

26 Suicide rate 2013 - 15 59 16.6 10.1 17.4 5.6

27 Smoking related deaths 2013 - 15 1,188 459.7 283.5

28 Under 75 mortality rate: cardiovascular 2013 - 15 460 120.3 74.6 137.6 43.1

29 Under 75 mortality rate: cancer 2013 - 15 733 190.8 138.8 194.8 98.6

30 Excess winter deaths Aug 2012 - Jul
2015

309 17.7 19.6 36.0 6.9Li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

an
d 

ca
us

es
 o

f d
ea

th

Indicator notes
1 Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015 2 % children (under 16) in low income families 3 Eligible homeless people not in priority need, crude rate per 1,000 households
4 5 A*-C including English & Maths, % pupils at end of key stage 4 resident in local authority 5 Recorded violence against the person crimes, crude rate per 1,000 population
6 Crude rate per 1,000 population aged 16-64 7 % of women who smoke at time of delivery 8 % of all mothers who breastfeed their babies in the first 48hrs after delivery
9 % school children in Year 6 (age 10-11) 10 Persons under 18 admitted to hospital due to alcohol-specific conditions, crude rate per 100,000 population 11 Under-18
conception rate per 1,000 females aged 15 to 17 (crude rate) 12 Current smokers (aged 18 and over), Annual Population Survey 13 % adults (aged 16 and over) achieving at
least 150 mins physical activity per week, Active People Survey 14 % adults (aged 16 and over) classified as overweight or obese, Active People Survey 15 Experimental
statistics - % of cancers diagnosed at stage 1 or 2 16 Directly age sex standardised rate per 100,000 population 17 Admissions involving an alcohol-related primary diagnosis
or an alcohol-related external cause (narrow definition), directly age standardised rate per 100,000 population 18 % people (aged 17 and over) on GP registers with a
recorded diagnosis of diabetes 19 Crude rate per 100,000 population 20 All new diagnoses (excluding chlamydia under age 25), crude rate per 100,000 population aged 15 to
64 21 Directly age-sex standardised rate of emergency admissions, per 100,000 population aged 65 and over 22, 23 The average number of years a person would expect to
live based on contemporary mortality rates 24 Rate of deaths in infants aged under 1 year per 1,000 live births 25 Rate per 100,000 population 26 Directly age standardised
mortality rate from suicide and injury of undetermined intent per 100,000 population (aged 10 and over) 27 Directly age standardised rate per 100,000 population aged 35 and
over 28 Directly age standardised rate per 100,000 population aged under 75 29 Directly age standardised rate per 100,000 population aged under 75 30 Ratio of excess
winter deaths (observed winter deaths minus expected deaths based on non-winter deaths) to average non-winter deaths (three years) 
† Indicator has had methodological changes so is not directly comparable with previously released values. € "Regional" refers to the former government regions.
       ^20 Value based on an average of monthly counts        $1 There is a data quality issue with this value
If 25% or more of areas have no data then the England range is not displayed. Please send any enquiries to healthprofiles@phe.gov.uk

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit 
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/

www.healthprofiles.info
Blackpool - 4 July 20174© Crown Copyright 2017

26

Page 54



This report was prepared by:

Stephen Boydell  
Principal Epidemiologist 
 

Lynn Donkin  
Consultant in Public Health

With support and contributions  
kindly supplied by:

Yvonne Burnett  
Democratic Governance Senior Adviser

Nicola Dennison  
Senior Public Health Practitioner

Andrew Foot  
Head of Housing

Christine Graham  
Senior Epidemiologist

 
Denise Jackson  
Public Health Business Manager

Michelle Knowles  
PA/Team Administrator

Judith Mills  
Consultant in Public Health

Liz Petch  
Consultant in Public Health 
 

Further reading:

JSNA website   
www.blackpooljsna.org.uk

Page 55



  

FROM THE GROUND UP
THE HEALTH OF THE 
PEOPLE OF BLACKPOOL 
2017

Page 56



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Dr Leon LeRoux, Clinical Director, Lancashire Care Foundation Trust

Date of Meeting 10 October 2018

LANCASHIRE CARE FOUNDATION TRUST IMPROVEMENT PLAN

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To provide the Committee with a progress report on the Lancashire Care Foundation 
Trust Improvement Plan.

2.0 Recommendation:

2.1 To use the opportunity to question the representatives from Lancashire Care 
Foundation Trust to seek assurance that the Trust is making the required 
improvements.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 To ensure that the Trust is scrutinised and held to account.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

N/A

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is:

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

5.0 Background Information

5.1 Attached at the appendix is the report provided by Lancashire Care Foundation Trust.

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

6.0 List of Appendices:
Appendix 7(a): Lancashire Care Foundation Trust Report

7.0 Legal considerations:

7.1 None.

8.0 Human Resources considerations:

8.1 None.

9.0 Equalities considerations:

9.1 None.

10.0 Financial considerations:

10.1 None.

11.0 Risk management considerations:

11.1 None.

12.0 Ethical considerations:

12.1 None.

13.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

13.1 None.

14.0 Background papers:

14.1 None.

Page 58



Appendix 7(a)

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspected the Trust in January and February 2018; which was 
preceded by the annual provider information request in the summer of 2017. The Trust received the 
draft reports in April 2018 with publication in May 2018. The Trust submitted factual accuracy 
challenges which resulted in minor changes.   

1.2 The Head of Communications and Associate Director of Safety and Quality Governance have enacted 
the communications and engagement plan agreed by Board including briefings for staff, commissioners 
and stakeholders. 

1.3 For context, the CQC inspected five “core services” (their mechanism for grouping services) as part of 
their continual inspection process. Where services did not receive an inspection, the previous ratings 
remain in effect. 

 acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric intensive care units
 forensic inpatient / secure wards
 child and adolescent mental health wards
 mental health crisis services and health based places of safety
 community health inpatient services

The Trust provides the following 10 core services which the CQC did not inspect:

 community-based mental health services for adults of working age
 wards for older people with mental health problems
 community-based mental health services for older people
 specialist community mental health services for children and young people
 community mental health services for people with a learning disability or autism
 community health services for adults
 community health (sexual services)
 community health services for children, young people and families
 learning disability supported living
 community dental services

In addition, the Trust at the time provided offender healthcare services. 

2.0 DEVELOPMENT AND DELIVERY OF THE ACTION PLAN

2.1 As previously agreed by the Executive Directors Group and Trust Board, the Associate Director of Safety 
and Quality Governance led the development of the action plan. The following arrangements for action 
plan development formed part of that that overall process:

 The Quality Governance Department identified, from all reports, the Must Do and Should Do 
requirements identified by the CQC and further identified all possible improvement opportunities 
mentioned throughout the reports. The CQC issued 22 ‘Must Do’ requirements and 23 ‘Should Do’ 
issues. These are included in Appendix 1. 

Page 59



 Each requirement or improvement opportunity has an identified outcome measure, centrally 
developed by the Quality Governance Department that meets the intention of the CQC. 

 The Mental Health Network developed actions to meet the requirement/improvement and 
outcome measure. Each action includes milestones where the action has a long delivery timeframe.

 Where an action links to existing work (such as the wider Mental Health Improvement plan) then 
the link has been made to avoid duplication of effort. 

 Any actions not fully achieved through to completion in the 2017 CQC Inspection have been 
incorporated into the 2018 action plan and / or transformation and strategic plans as appropriate to 
the issue.

 Each action has an action lead, action owner and an executive lead – the action owner will be the 
director level position responsible for the service if they are not already the action lead (i.e. Clinical 
Director/Head of Operations)

 The actions put forward were scrutinised by the Quality Governance Department. The final action 
plan was presented to the Executive Directors Group for approval in June 2018, then submitted to 
the CQC on the 29 June 2018. 

2.2 The Quality Summit was held in July 2018, chaired by NHS Improvement. 

2.3 Actions that have been completed have been set to 30 June 2018 as target completion date – some 
actions will have been completed sooner and these are marked clearly as “Complete” with exact dates 
and evidence to be uploaded to the action tracking system.  

2.4 As part of the action planning process, consideration was given to the minimum standard expected for 
compliance with Trust mandatory training, appraisal and supervision standards. The Senior Leadership 
Team agreed to set the minimum standard of 80% for all three areas. 

2.5 Attached to this report is the summary action plan outlining key actions against the requirements. The 
full action plan is available. 

3.0 MONITORING OF THE ACTION PLAN  

3.1 As previously agreed by the Executive Directors Group and Trust Board, the Quality and Safety 
Department leads the assurance mechanism to ensure delivery of the actions. The following 
arrangements for action plan monitoring form part of that that overall process:

 All actions were added to the Datix action tracking function by mid-July 2018

 Live dashboards are now available to monitor progress in real-time 

 Action completion involves the action owner submitting evidence, that is validated by the Quality 
Governance Department and approved by the executive lead. 

 Monthly reporting is in place to the Quality and Safety Sub-committee, Business Development and 
Delivery Sub-committee and People Sub-committee, with bi-monthly reporting to the Quality 
Committee (and through that reporting to Trust Board). 

Page 60



 

3.2 Any actions moving “overdue” or identified as “at risk” of delivery triggers a summit meeting with the 
Executive Director of Nursing and Quality, Associate Director of Safety and Quality Governance along 
with the action lead, action owner and executive lead. The outcome of this is then reported through to 
the appropriate sub-committee with immediate escalation to the Executive Director Group if needed. 

3.3 The CQC is kept informed of progress through monthly engagement meetings attended by the CQC local 
inspection team, Executive Director of Nursing and Quality, Associate Director of Safety and Quality 
Governance and Deputy Director of Nursing (using the same report that is presented to the Quality and 
Safety Sub-committee).

4.0 DOMAINS AND THEMES 

4.1 The requirements and actions have been grouped into a series of domains that group together similar 
issues. Each domain has been mapped to an executive lead and a relevant sub-committee of the Board 
as follows (with further detail in the summary action plan):

Domain Executive Lead Sub-committee

Training Damian Gallagher People Sub-committee 

Supervision Damian Gallagher People Sub-committee 

Appraisals Damian Gallagher People Sub-committee 

Clinical risk Max Marshall Quality and Safety Sub-
committee 

Staffing Paul Lumsdon Quality and Safety Sub-
committee 

Care planning Paul Lumsdon Quality and Safety Sub-
committee 

Safety Paul Lumsdon Quality and Safety Sub-
committee 

Mental health crises pathway Sue Moore Business Development and 
Delivery Sub-committee 

Leadership and empowerment Damian Gallagher People Sub-committee

Information Sue Moore Business Development and 
Delivery Sub-committee

4.2 As detailed above in 3.1, each executive lead and sub-committee receives a monthly report on progress 
against the CQC action plan relevant to their domain of responsibility. This focus by domain allows the 
relevant executive lead and sub-committee to consider any Trust-wide learning or improvement from 
actions underway (beyond the service directly affected). 

4.3 In addition to the grouping by domain, a number of high level themes were identified that are 
contributing factors to both the issues identified by CQC and the solutions. These themes include:

 Supporting and empowering clinical leaders 
 Improving the mental health crisis pathway 

Page 61



4.4 Actions have not been developed against these themes as strategic or transformation plans already 
exist that align with these (i.e. DTS programmes, People Plan etc.). However it is important to note the 
impact that improving these areas will have, not just on the CQC requirements but on wider quality 
improvement. The action plan therefore represents the transactional actions required to make changes 
in response to the CQC findings, whilst these three themes and the relevant strategies to improve 
represent the transformation required to sustain the changes and improvements. 

5.0 MENTAL HEALTH IMPROVEMENT PLAN (MHIP)

5.1 The MHIP was developed in July 2018 to bring together a number of projects and schemes that    were 
identified as necessary support improvement in the delivery of mental health services across Primary, 
Community and Acute care. The schemes are identified in the following programmes:

Primary Care Model 
A&E
Integrated Front Door 
Inpatient Flow 
Discharge 
Recovery 

5.2 The Mental Health Improvement Oversight Group is Chaired by the Director of Operations and works to 
align the schemes Any issues or risks that cannot be managed by this group are escalated through the 
highlight report. The steering group is supported by a task and finish group in each locality that is 
chaired by the Care Group Manager. 

5.3 Discussions are underway to develop a steering group to oversee the Inpatient Flow and discharge 
schemes. This group will coordinate the schemes identified and ensure close alignment and forward 
planning. 

6.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS   

6.1 The Committee is asked to note this report.

Page 62



APPENDIX 1 – CQC Must Do and Should Do Requirements (relating to Adult Mental Health Services)

Action the trust must take to improve: 

Trust wide: 

 The trust must ensure that staff receive the required training for their role. 
 The trust must ensure that staff receive supervision in line with trust policy. Effective systems must 

be in place to evidence compliance. 
 The trust must ensure that staff receive appraisals in line with trust policy. 

Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric intensive care units: 

 The trust must ensure that patients are monitored appropriately following the administration of 
rapid tranquilisation. 

 The trust must ensure staff are compliant with essential training requirements. 
 The trust must ensure staff receive supervision and that this is accurately recorded. 
 The trust must ensure staff receive an annual appraisal and that this is accurately recorded. 

Mental health crisis services and health-based places of safety: 

 The trust must ensure that patients are not held in the 136 suites for longer than 24 hours, in 
accordance with the Mental Health Act. 

 The trust must ensure that patients in the crisis support unit/mental health decision units are 
comfortable, and have their privacy and dignity maintained. 

 The trust must ensure that it has robust governance structures in place, so that it can provide a 
definitive list of its teams and their function within this core service; and information in relation to 
the teams which includes mandatory training and supervision. 

Action the trust should take to improve: 

Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric intensive care units: 

 The trust should ensure ward managers and modern matrons have sufficient capacity to deliver 
their managerial responsibilities. 

 The trust should ensure the smoke free policy is implemented consistently and that staff are 
supported to achieve this. 

 The trust should ensure wards have regular team meetings for staff. 
 The trust should ensure there is shared learning between locations and different services within the 

trust.
 The trust should ensure patients are offered copies of their care plan and that this is recorded.

Mental health crisis services and health based places of safety: 

 The trust should ensure that when patients have their capacity assessed, this is clearly and 
consistently documented. 

 The trust should ensure that the section 136 suites are reviewed regularly to ensure they are fit for 
purpose, and meet the requirements of the Mental Health Act and its code of practice. 

Page 63



 The trust should ensure incidents that occur in the section 136 suites are clearly identifiable, and 
that this information can be monitored and analysed across all the suites to look for themes or 
trends, and implement learning from this. 

 The trust should ensure that consideration is given to the use of seclusion of people who are not 
inpatients, but are being held once their section 136 has lapsed. 

 The trust should ensure that staffing levels are kept under review, to ensure that suites are 
adequately staffed but do not deplete the staffing levels on the inpatient wards. 

 The trust should ensure that the role of crisis support units or mental health decision units is clear. 
 The trust should ensure that the showering facilities in the Preston crisis support unit/mental 

health decision unit are fit for purpose.

Page 64



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Dr Amanda Doyle, Chief Clinical Officer of Blackpool and Fylde and Wyre 

CCGs and Chief Officer of the Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated 

Care System

Date of Meeting: 10 October 2018

LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM 
UPDATE 

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To update the Committee on key areas of progress across the Lancashire and South Cumbria 
Integrated Care System.  

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 The committee is asked to note this update, identifying any further issues for scrutiny.  

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 To ensure that the committee is apprised of developments, progress and future plans at 
Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS) level.  

3.2 Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the 
Council?

No

3.3 Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? N/A

4.0 Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1 Not applicable 

5.0 Council priority:

5.1 The relevant Council priority is:

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



6.0 Background information

6.1 Context 

It should be noted that the Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System (L&SC ICS) 
is not an organisation; it is a partnership of health and care organisations across the system 
working together to improve the health and wellbeing of the L&SC population.  The L&SC ICS 
is comprised of: 

• Five Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs) – Fylde Coast, Morecambe Bay, Pennine, 
Central and West Lancashire, covering a population of 1.7m.  

• Eight CCGs
• Five NHS Trusts
• Four upper tier Local Authorities and district councils 
• NHS England and NHS Improvement
• Wider partners such as voluntary, charity, hospices and education

Across L&SC, there are a number of challenges with poor health throughout the area, with 
widespread health inequalities and an ageing population with complex needs and 
consequent increasing demand on both health and social care services.  There continues to 
be a rise in demand for mental health support both in community and inpatient settings.  
There are also difficulties in recruiting and retaining adequate workforce levels across the 
region.  

6.2 ICS progress to date: 

a) Governance and system architecture 

Establishment of: 
 An ICS governance framework 
 An ICS executive team comprising of: Chief Officer, Executive Director for 

Transformation, Executive Director for Commissioning, Executive Director for Finance 
and Investment, Executive Director of Health and Social Care Integration (role yet to be 
advertised), Medical Director, Director of Nursing and Care Professionals and Director of 
Delivery, Performance and Assurance 

 A L&SC ICS Board including representation from the four upper tier Local Authorities – 
meeting monthly.  Broad areas of responsibility for the board is around assurance and 
delivery, sustainability, transformation and ICS design and implementation 

 A Joint Committee of CCGs with powers delegated from constituent CCGs to make 
legally binding decisions for the L&SC population 

 A Partnership Forum, comprising of senior representatives from a wide range of 
statutory and third sector organisations, primary care and local Healthwatch

 A Social Partnership Forum bringing together trade unions, NHS Employers and staff-side 
representatives

 General practices across L&SC working in Primary Care Networks (neighbourhoods of 
populations between 20k to 50k)

 A L&SC approach to Urgent and Emergency Care performance, improvement and 
assurance 

Page 66



 Development and implementation of a L&SC strategic framework which details the key 
portfolios of work at L&SC level, underpinned with key priorities for each

b) Transformation

 L&SC are part of the first wave of Integrated Care Systems – with a supporting 
Memorandum of Understanding and associated transformation funding 

 Development and implementation of Improving Health and Care at Scale Framework for 
L&SC which utilises data in the planning and delivery of proactive care to achieve 
maximum impact.  Specific areas of focus for 2018/2019 – 2019/2020 include 
neighbourhood level integration, improving transfers of care, stroke, diabetes, suicide, 
social prescribing, patient activation, personal health budgets and personalised care and 
support plans.  

 Pathology Collaboration development – the four NHS Trusts across L&SC have formed a 
partnership to deliver a single ‘cold’ pathology service across the patch working with 
staff and external partners to provide a streamlined, sustainable service which is 
clinically and cost effective and is part of a national strategy led by NHS Improvement.

 Diagnostics service developments with a focus on two main priorities – interventional 
radiology (IR) procedures clarification and pathways for out of hours emergencies.  
Following extensive clinical engagement and review, there are agreed IR procedures 
locally, agreed IR regional pathways for out of hours intervention in trauma, vascular, 
urology and gynaecology.  Work is underway to implement these across the area and 
identify other out of hours emergency pathways for review.  

 A review of Endoscopy services has been completed which has resulted in endoscopy 
action plans in each NHS Trust, a Nurse Endoscopist collaboration and a focus on bowel 
screening – which directly links with the Cancer Alliance.  In addition to this, a separate 
workstream has been set up review the GI bleeds out of hours pathway.
There is a specific focus on workforce development within diagnostics and strong clinical 
leadership in driving the diagnostics work forward – supported by digital innovation.  
The diagnostics workstream have been awarded £500k in transformation funding to 
improve time to diagnosis in lung cancer.   

 End to end stroke services development, co-designing with clinicians and other 
stakeholders a care model for future service delivery, with the introduction of hyper-
acute stroke services

 Maternity services development, committed to implementing the Local Maternity 
Services agenda and embedding a focus on health improvement, ill health prevention 
and safeguarding in all women’s and children’s care, thus providing the best start for the 
L&SC population

 Development and implementation of the L&SC Digital Strategy (including robust 
community engagement across the patch – including the Fylde Coast) to:

o Empower people
o Support the front line
o Create the future
o Integrate services
o Manage the system more effectively

 Roll out of the L&SC Digital Healthy Schools Programme (St George’s High School in 
Blackpool is part of this programme) 

 Digital priorities bid (provider digitisation) – development and submission to access 
national transformation funding (£13.54m across 2018/2021)

 Development and co-production (with patients and wider stakeholders) of the L&SC 
Cancer Delivery Plan 

Page 67



 Development of a World Health Organisation Collaboration focused on economic 
opportunities in addressing the wider determinants of health (led by the Director of 
Public Health at Blackburn Council for L&SC)

 Development and implementation of a L&SC Public Consultation Strategy 
 Development and implementation of a L&SC Communications and Engagement Strategy 
 Supporting the development of the central transformation programme ‘Our Health Our 

Care’ 
 CCG policy harmonisation across L&SC – with decision making delegated to the Joint 

Committee of CCG’s 
 Development and submission of L&SC capital priorities (wave 4) and L&SC Estates and 

Infrastructure Strategy 
 Commissioned urgent and emergency care external support for Trusts across L&SC – to 

improve performance and resilience ahead of winter 
 Commissioned an external mental health diagnostic (via Northumberland, Tyne and 

Wear NHS Trust) reviewing mental health provision across the patch – to improve 
quality, safety and performance 

 Development and implementation of a L&SC financial strategy 
 Development and implementation of a L&SC Commissioning Framework 

c) High level financial picture  - closing the £387m gap 

The committee asked to receive an update on the position around closing the £387m gap in 
funding (as outlined in the STP submission in 2016).  In 2016/2017 the original STP financial 
templates estimated a £387m shortfall in 2018/2019 if nothing was done to mitigate the 
forecast position. By 2020/2021, the estimate was that health could be in deficit by £443m if 
nothing was done.

Based on the action identified then, it was thought solutions could be implemented that 
would reduce the shortfall in 2018/2019 to a net deficit in health services of £92m. The 
actual deficit in 2018/2019 based on this year’s plans is a deficit of £132m, which is £40m 
worse than the 2016/2017 estimates, but £255m better than the ‘do nothing’ scenario.

d) Next steps 

Work will continue across the L&SC ICS to drive the transformation agenda forward across 
the key portfolios.  However in light of the publication of the long term plan, the 
governance, structures and priorities will be reviewed across the L&SC ICS to ensure 
alignment with the ambitions and priorities indicated in the long term plan.   

6.3 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

7.0 List of Appendices:

7.1 None included 

8.0 Legal considerations:

8.1 Not applicable 

Page 68



9.0 Human resources considerations:

9.1 Not applicable 

10.0 Equalities considerations:

10.1 Not applicable 

11.0 Financial considerations:

11.1 No additional comments outside of the above.  

12.0 Risk management considerations:

12.1 Not applicable

13.0 Ethical considerations:

13.1 Not applicable 

14.0 Internal/external consultation undertaken:

Not applicable 

15.0 Background papers:

15.1 Not applicable 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Mrs Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager

Date of Meeting: 10 October 2018

SCRUTINY WORKPLAN

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The Committee to consider the Workplan, together with any suggestions that 
Members may wish to make for scrutiny review.

2.0 Recommendations:

2.1

2.2

To approve the Committee Workplan, taking into account any suggestions for 
amendment or addition.

To monitor the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations/actions.

3.0 Reasons for recommendations:

3.1 To ensure the Workplan is up-to-date and is an accurate representation of the 
Committee’s work.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

N/A

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is

 Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



5.0 Background Information

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

Scrutiny Workplan

The Scrutiny Committee Workplan is attached at Appendix 9(a).  The Workplan is a 
flexible document that sets out the work that the Committee will undertake over the 
course of the year.

Committee Members are invited, either now or in the future, to suggest topics that 
might be suitable for scrutiny in order that they be added to the Workplan.

At the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee held on 11 July 2018, 
Members agreed to hold two reviews into delayed transfers of care and bed 
shortages, and accident and emergency waiting times and ambulance handovers. 
Following discussions with the Chairman and Mr David Bonson, Blackpool Clinical 
Commissioning Group, it has been agreed that as the issues relate so closely together 
one meeting will be held and will cover the full chain from an ambulance arriving at 
accident and emergency to the patient being discharged from hospital with all the 
key issues of concern in between covered. A meeting date will be confirmed as soon 
as possible.

5.2

5.2.1

Scrutiny Selection Checklist

The Scrutiny Selection Checklist is attached at Appendix 9(b). The checklist forms part 
of the mandatory scrutiny procedure for establishing review panels and must 
therefore be completed and submitted for consideration by the Committee, prior to 
a topic being approved for scrutiny.

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

Implementation of Recommendations/Actions

The table attached to Appendix 9(c) has been developed to assist the Committee to 
effectively ensure that the recommendations made by the Committee are acted 
upon.  The table will be regularly updated and submitted to each Committee 
meeting. 

Members are requested to consider the updates provided in the table and follow up 
questions as appropriate.

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

List of Appendices:

Appendix 9(a): Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee 
Workplan 2018/2019

Page 72



Appendix 9(b): Scrutiny Selection Checklist
Appendix 9(c): Implementation of Recommendations

6.0 Legal considerations:

6.1 None.

7.0 Human Resources considerations:

7.1 None.

8.0 Equalities considerations:

8.1 None.

9.0 Financial considerations:

9.1 None.

10.0 Risk management considerations:

10.1 None.

11.0 Ethical considerations:

11.1 None.

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1 None.

13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9(a)

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORKPLAN 2018/2019 

10 October 2018 1. Proposals for Council Plan Performance Reporting Arrangements
2. Health and Social Care Integration Progress to focus on Integrated Care 

Partnerships and Sustainability Transformation Plans
3. Lancashire Care Foundation Trust - Improvement Plan tbc
4. Director of Public Health’s Annual Report

28 28 November 2018 1 Blackpool Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017/2018 including 
2018/2019 priorities

2 Healthwatch Progress Report 2017/2018, including 2018/2019 priorities
3 Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group Mid-Year Performance Report
4 GP Appointments to include number available, duration and waiting times

13 February 2019 1 Adult Services Overview Report including Transforming Care for Adults with 
Learning Disabilities progress and key performance reporting

2 Public Health Overview Report including key performance reporting and an 
update on the provision of breastfeeding and infant support services

3 North West Ambulance Service annual update on performance
4 Obesity – to receive an update on action taken to reduce obesity from Public 

Health and the CCG and impact to date

April 2019
(Period for comments)

Responses to draft quality accounts 
 Lancashire Care Foundation Trust 
 Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
 North West Ambulance Service 

July 2019 
(Subject to 
confirmation at 
Annual Council, May 
2019)

1 Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report - End of Year 
2018/2019

2 Annual Council Plan Performance report on relevant Priority Two projects, 
complete with ‘Blackpool Outcomes’ 

3 Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, income and 
expenditure plan, financial performance, transitional themes, efficiency 
savings and impact of savings upon patients

4 Health and Social Care Integration, focussing on progress, impact and the 
Sustainability Transformation Plan

 
October 2019 1 Adult Services Overview Report, including key performance reporting

2 Public Health Overview Report, including key performance reporting and the 
Director of Public Health’s Annual Report

3 Lancashire Care Foundation Trust, annual update on improvement planning
4 Tbc

December 2019 1 Blackpool Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2018/2019 including 
2019/2020 priorities

2 Healthwatch Progress Report 2018/2019, including 2019/2020 priorities
3 Blackpool Clinical Commissioning Group Mid-Year Performance Report 
4 Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, tbc

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9 (b)

SCRUTINY SELECTION CHECKLIST

Title of proposed Scrutiny: 

The list is intended to assist the relevant scrutiny committee in deciding whether or not to approve a 
topic that has been suggested for scrutiny.

Whilst no minimum or maximum number of ‘yes’ answers are formally required, the relevant scrutiny 
committee is recommended to place higher priority on topics related to the performance and 
priorities of the Council.

Yes/No
The review will add value to the Council and/or its partners overall performance:

The review is in relation to one or more of the Council’s priorities:

The Council or its partners are not performing well in this area:

It is an area where a number of complaints (or bad press) have been received:

The issue is strategic and significant:

There is evidence of public interest in the topic:

The issue has potential impact for one or more sections of the community:

Service or policy changes are planned and scrutiny could have a positive input:

Adequate resources (both members and officers) are available to carry out the scrutiny:

Please give any further details on the proposed review:

Completed by:                                                               Date: 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9(c)

MONITORING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS

DATE OF 
REC

RECOMMENDATION TARGET 
DATE

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER

UPDATE RAG 
RATING

1 24.01.18 ‘Zero’ suicide target should be 
adopted within Blackpool

14.03.18 Zohra Dempsey, 
Public Health

The target was discussed at an oversight meeting on 
20 September 2018.  The Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Integrated Care System has signed-up to 
the Zero Suicide Alliance.  Zero suicides is an 
ambition for the area and something all 
organisations are working towards.  In terms of 
target setting, the target sits with criminal justice 
and inpatient settings.  Some actions that are 
underway include:  

 Development of the real-time surveillance 
system and digital solutions (e.g. beacons on 
bridges and other high frequency areas);

 Appropriate intervention in public areas 
where a number of suicides have occurred 
(e.g. Samaritans helpline signs and 
restricting access);

 Roll-out of comprehensive suicide 
prevention training plan across all local 
authority areas within the ICS; 

 Mapping of debt advice services;
 Audit of organisations against safer care 

standards, results of which will inform 
improvement plans.

Green

2 09.05.18 To receive a further report on 
health and social care
integration, focusing on the 
Lancashire and South Cumbria 
Integrated Care System / 
Sustainability and 
Transformation Planning.

10.10.18 Amanda Doyle, 
Healthier 
Lancashire

On the agenda for the meeting. Green

P
age 79



Appendix 9(c)

Further update to: Consider targeted community options for support and mental health awareness-
raising and report back on progress.

The local mental health campaign is being launched on world mental health day – 10 October 2018.  The 
campaign is based on research on what works to improve mental wellbeing and although it’s aimed at all 
adults, it has been designed to be resonate particularly with men and middle-aged people, as groups that 
may be at risk of lower wellbeing but less likely to seek help.  

The campaign budget is limited so initially, libraries are being contacted to look at ways in which to share 
the messages.  There will also be posters in trams and buses and social media advertising and 
information will be cascaded through partners.

In terms of targeted community support, public health have jointly funded a post with Better Start to 
develop ‘Men in Sheds’ in Blackpool – this will focus on men of all ages, whether they are dads or not.  

Public Health has also started working with the Blackpool FC Community Trust to look at interventions 
involving physical activity for improving wellbeing.   

Page 80


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 11 JULY 2018
	4 FORWARD PLAN
	Appendix 4a  Forward Plan October 2019 To January 2020

	5 COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS FROM 2018/2019
	App 5A - Reporting Timetable 2018-19
	Copy of App 5B - Headline KPI Dashboard Q1 2018-19

	6 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH'S ANNUAL REPORT ON THE HEALTH OF THE PEOPLE OF BLACKPOOL 2017
	Appendix 6a Final - Blackpool Annual Public Health Report 2017

	7 LANCASHIRE CARE FOUNDATION TRUST IMPROVEMENT PLAN
	Item 7 LCFT Report

	8 HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION PROCESS
	9 SCRUTINY WORKPLAN
	Item 9 - App 9a - ASC&HSC Work Plan
	Item 9 - App 9b - Scrutiny Checklist
	Appendix 9c Recommendation Monitoring


